
(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

S IL
O

S IL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
TL
OC
K

MA
TL
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GGRR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

S OUTHEAS TS OUTHEAS T

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

S UBLETTS UBLETT

S ANFORDS ANFORD

PIONEER
PIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANS ASARKANS AS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MITCHELLMITCHELL

(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

S IL
O

S IL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
TL
OC
K

MA
TL
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GGRR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

S OUTHEAS TS OUTHEAS T

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

S UBLETTS UBLETT

S ANFORDS ANFORD

PIONEER
PIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANS ASARKANS AS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MITCHELLMITCHELL

0 1 2
Miles

¿¿2

PLANNING & ZONINGPLANNING & ZONING
                           November 9, 2016                           November 9, 2016

¿¿3

¿¿4


Th is product is for informational purposes and may not h ave been 
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 

purposes. It does not
represent an on-th e-ground survey and represents only th e 
approximate relative location of property boundaries. 

1. Preliminary Plat –Kroger S ublett 
2. PD16-18 - Woodside Tow nh omes 
3. PD07-18R4 - Arlington High lands East 
4. PD11-7R2 - QT 876 Addition 
5. PD16-11 - Kroger S ublett Addition 
6. AS P16-1 - Kroger DAL593 

¿¿ 1,5,6 



   
 
 
 

AGENDA 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

Work Session 

     Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

                 101 West Abram Street  

 

November 9, 2016 
4:00 P.M. 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION OF REGULAR SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
III. DIRECTOR UPDATE ON PREVIOUS COUNCIL ITEMS 

 

A. Zoning Case PD16-15 
(Costco Wholesale Liquor Addition – 600 West Arbrook 
Boulevard) 
 

Application to change the zoning on approximately 15.590 
acres from Community Commercial (CC) to Planned 
Development (PD) for limited Community Commercial (CC) 
uses plus a Package Liquor Store, with a Development Plan; 
generally located south of West Arbrook Boulevard and east of 
Matlock Road. 
 

CC Approved 9-0-0 on 10/25/16 on final reading 
 

B. Zoning Case ASP16-2 
(Hurricane Harbor – 1800 East Lamar Boulevard) 
 

Application to approve an Alternate Sign Plan on 
approximately 46 acres zoned Entertainment District 
Overlay – Community Commercial (EDO-CC); generally 
located north of East Interstate 30 Highway and west of 
Ballpark Way. 
 
CC Approved 9-0-0 on 10/25/16 on final reading 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 11-09-16 Page 2 

C. Zoning Case ASP16-3 
(Six Flags – 2201 East Road to Six Flags) 
 

Application to approve an Alternate Sign Plan on 
approximately 190 acres zoned Entertainment District 
Overlay – Community Commercial (EDO-CC); generally 
located south of East Interstate 30 Highway and east of 
Ballpark Way. 
 
CC Approved 9-0-0 on 10/25/16 on final reading 
 

D. Zoning Case PD16-21 (formerly known as ZA16-8)  
(Ballweg Residential – 7415, 7418, and 7500 Webb Ferrell 
Road) 
 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 43.634 
acres from Residential Estate (RE) to Residential Single 
Family – 7.2 (RS-7.2); generally located west of South 
Collins Street and south of Mansfield Webb Road. 
 
CC Approved 9-0-0, with stipulations, on 10/25/16 on 
first and final reading 
 

E. Thoroughfare Development Plan Amendment 
(related to Ballweg Residential Development) 
 
Consider revisions to the Thoroughfare Development Plan to 
include the following: 

 
1. Realign and downgrade to a local street a section of 

Webb Ferrell Road from Deer Hollow Drive to Red Deer 
Way.  

2. Realign and downgrade Ballweg Road from a four-lane 
Major Collector to a two-lane Minor Collector from Loretta 
Day Drive to future Webb Ferrell Road. 

3. Realign and downgrade to a local street a section of 
Ballweg Road from future Webb Ferrell Road to North 
Webb Ferrell Road. 

 
CC Approved 9-0-0 on 10/25/16  
 
 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 11-09-16 Page 3 

F. Zoning Case PD14-9R 
(Legends Express Car Wash – 5521, 5523, and 5525 South 
Cooper Street) 
 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 1.786 
acres from Planned Development (PD) for Community 
Commercial (CC) uses plus a carwash, with a Development 
Plan to Planned Development (PD) for Community 
Commercial (CC) uses plus a carwash and a commercial 
kennel with an outside run, with a Development Plan; 
generally located north of West Nathan Lowe Road and east 
of South Cooper Street. 
 
CC Approved 8-0-0 on 11/01/16  
 

G. Zoning Case PD16-20 
(Sandlin Delafield, Inc. – 6900 Silo Road) 
 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 5.532 
acres from Neighborhood Commercial (NC) to Planned 
Development for Residential Single-Family-7.2 (PD-RS-7.2) 
with a development plan; generally located north of East 
Eden Road and west of Silo Road. 
 
CC Approved 8-0-0 on 11/01/16  

 
 
IV. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE MEETING DATES AND TIMES 
 

(a) Planning and Zoning Commission Two-Hour Bus Tour –  
December 2, 2016 
 

(b) Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting on December 7, 2016 
 
 
V. ADJOURN 



 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Regular Session 

   Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

101 West Abram Street  

 
 

November 9, 2016 
5:30 P.M. 

 
 
Meeting order is subject to change per the Commission’s Discretion 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

II. PLEDGE 
 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A. Minutes of October 19, 2016 P&Z Meeting 

 

 
IV. PLAT CONSENT AGENDA AND PUBLIC HEARING FOR PLATS 

 
A. Preliminary Plat –Kroger Sublett Addition – Lots 1-9, Block A, 

and Lot 1, Block B zoned Planned Development (PD); 
generally located south of East Sublett Road and west of 

South Highway 360 with the approximate address of 2420 
East Sublett Road. 

 

 

V. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ZONING CASES 

A. Zoning Case PD16-18 

(Woodside Townhomes – 2501 Woodside Drive) 

 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 5.50 acres 

from Planned Development (PD) for retirement village to 

Planned Development (PD) for Residential Medium-Density 
(RM-12) uses, with a Development Plan; generally located 

south of West Arkansas Lane and east of Woodside Drive. 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 11-09-16 Page 2 

 

B. Zoning Case PD07-18R4 

(Arlington Highlands East – 415 Curtis Mathes Way, 4,000 
Bagpiper Way, and 401, 415, and 421 East Interstate 20 

Highway) 
 

Application for approval of a revision to the development plan 
on approximately 19.425 acres currently zoned Planned 

Development (PD) for limited commercial uses, with a 
Development Plan.; generally located north of East Interstate 

20 Highway and east of Matlock Road. 

C. Zoning Case PD11-7R2 

(QT 876 Addition – 1425 North Cooper Street and 600 West 
Road to Six Flags Street) 

 
Application for approval of a revision to the development plan 

on approximately 2.590 acres currently zoned Planned 
Development (PD) for Community Service (CS) uses, with 

exclusions, with a Development Plan; generally located south 
of West Road to Six Flags Street and east of North Cooper 

Street. 

D. Zoning Case PD16-11 

(Kroger Sublett Addition – 2420 East Sublett Road) 

 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 33.607 

acres from Planned Development (PD) for Community 
Commercial (CC) uses, with a concept brief to Planned 

Development (PD) for limited Community Commercial (CC) 
uses plus a Package Liquor store, with a Development Plan; 

generally located south of East Sublett Road and west of 
South Highway 360. 

E. Zoning Case ASP16-1 

(Kroger DAL593 – 2420 East Sublett Road) 
 

Application to approve an Alternate Sign Plan on 
approximately 33.607 acres with a proposed zoning of 

Planned Development (PD) for limited Community 

Commercial (CC) uses plus a Package Liquor store, with a 
Development Plan; generally located south of East Sublett 

Road and west of South Highway 360. 
 

 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 11-09-16 Page 3 

 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Consider and adopt the schedule of Planning & Zoning 

Commission meetings for the 2017 calendar year  
 

B. Reports from Boards/Commissions Liaisons 
 

C. Reports from Staff and Announcements 
 

D. Discussion of Future Meeting Dates and Times  
 

 
VII. ADJOURN 



  

Draft – 2017 Public Hearing Schedule 

Planning & Zoning Commission 
City of Arlington, Texas 
2017 Public Hearing Schedule 
5:30 p.m. 

P&Z 
Public Hearing 

Meetings on Wednesdays 

01/04/2017 

01/18/2017 

02/01/2017 

02/15/2017 

03/01/2017 

03/15/2017 

04/05/2017 

04/19/2017 

05/03/2017 

05/17/2017 

06/07/2017 

06/21/2017 

07/12/2017 

08/02/2017 

08/16/2017 

09/06/2017 

09/20/2017 

10/04/2017 

10/18/2017 

11/08/2017 

12/06/2017 

12/20/2017 
 



 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  
 

Monthly Bus Tour  
  

 

December 2, 2016 
8:00 A.M. 

 
 

8:00 a.m. Planning and Zoning Commission Two-Hour Bus Tour of 

various metroplex developments. 
 

A quorum of the Commission may be present.  No formal action 

will be taken. 

 



 

Staff Report 
 

 

Preliminary Plat (Kroger Sublett Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  11-9-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider a preliminary plat on the consent agenda. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant, Winkleman & Associates, Inc. proposes to subdivide a 33.607-acre portion of 
the B.B.B. & C. Railroad Co. Survey, Abstract No. 203 creating 10 Lots of the Kroger Sublett 
Addition.  The applicant is proposing commercial development with two anchor tenants and 
eight parcels at the perimeter. 
 
Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 
complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
 Property Location: Generally located south of East Sublett Road and west of 

South Highway 360 with the approximate address of 
2420 East Sublett Road 

 
 Sector:   Southeast 

 
 Council District:  3 

 
 Current Zoning:  Planned Development (PD) 

 
ATTACHED  i. Location Map 

 ii. 11 x 17 Plat 
 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks 
Planning Manager, Land Development Principal Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov   Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov 

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Lot 1

Lot 2

Lot 9

Lot 8

Lot 7

Lot 6

Lot 5

Lot 4

Lot 3

Lot 1, Blk B

RS-7.2
GC

PD

RS-5

RE

RS-7.2

PDRS-5 CC

Z04-41/B04-41

PD07-25

SOUTHEAST PWY

E SUBLETT RD
WILL

OW
ST

ON
E TR

L
W CAMP WISDOM RD

BRISBANE DR

HW
Y3

60
S V

C
RD

NB

POWDER WOOD LN

S
WA

TS
ON

RD

06203

02245
02241

06200

06209

06303

06002

0600706006

02236

02239

0620402243

06004

06208

06403
06315

06407

06003

06201

06215
06300

06309

02248

06001

06308

06009

06417

02244

06207

06000

06310

06008

02326
02328

02329 02331

0591502318 02322

05909

02314

06005

05907
02317

02321 02335

02316 02324

02319 02333

02330 02332

0232502327

06206

06211

02209

06311

02315

06307

06312

06214

06419

06205

06405
06408

02247

02225

06302

05911
02320 02334

02323

06414

02237

02234

06600

0590002421

02411

06199

02420

02415

06321

06318

02100

06411
06320

02451

06423

06409
06319

06316

06304

06317

06305

06415

/LOCATION MAP
_̂

iii-1Prepared: 10-27-2016

SUBLETT KROGER
PRELIMINARY PLAT

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries. 
0 320160

Feet



5/8" IRF BEARS
S79°31'20"E, 1.66'

AMON
AR-56/COA

5/8" IRF

BMON 96-3-2/bm1
1/2" IRF BEARS S77°55'44"W, 0.85'

BMON 96-2-2/bm2

TXDOT
BMON

TXDOT
BMON
CM

TXDOT
BMON
CM

PORTION OF DALLAS

POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

VOLUME 3915, PAGE 429

VOLUME 5286, PAGE 934

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

AC
C

ESS PER
M

ITTED

VO
LU

M
E 10869 PAG

E 788

5' UTILITY EASEMENT
CABINET A, SLIDE 3397

7.5' UTILITY EASEMENT
CABINET A, SLIDE 2270

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
CABINET A, SLIDE 2270

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
CABINET A, SLIDE 2270

15' UTILITY EASEMENT
CABINET A, SLIDE 2270

20' DRAINAGE &
UTILITY EASEMENT

CABINET A, SLIDE 2270

10' CORNERSTONE NATURAL
GAS CO. EASEMENT

VOLUME 9629, PAGE 716

ACCESS DENIED
VOLUME 10869 PAGE 788

ACCESS PERMITTED
VOLUME 10869 PAGE 788

1,
28

7.
63

'

N
 0

3°
56

'3
9"

 E

878.48'

N 67°58'59" E

C
3

238.80'

S 11°53'21" E

Δ
=

014° 08' 0 5"

C
h

B
=S

0
4°4 9'2

4 "E
C

h
L=

697. 56'
L =

699. 3
4 '

R
=

2 ,8 3
4.7 9'

16
5.

41
'

S
 0

2°
14

'3
9"

 W

45
4.

84
'

S 
03

°5
0'

39
" W

684.90'

S 67°58'59" W

24
5.

50
'

N
 0

3°
56

'3
9"

 E

300.67'N 89°47'00" E
1/2" CIRF(2) 1/2" CIRF

134.36'
N 86°36'56" E

S 89°18'07" E
62.27'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
BLOCK B

30' GAS EASEMENT
CC #D210126745

30' GAS EASEMENT
CC #D210126745

15' GAS EASEMENT
CC #D210126745

(B
AS

IS
 O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
S)

34

35

BLOCK A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

S 78°06'07" W   205.60'

N
 11°54'06" W

   205.37'

215.01'

208.79'

23.79'

166.11'

177.51'

S 81°33'12" W   205.86'

2 65.4 5'

S 87°15'49" W   206.12'

2 85.9 9'

N 88°01'11" W   222.07'
16.00'

21
9 .

26
'

N 86°03'21" W   249.28'

N 86°03'21" W   249.66'

989.16' N 89°49'41" W

L1

C1 C2

LINE TABLE

LINE #

L1

BEARING

S47°12'21"E

DISTANCE

5.18'

CURVE TABLE

NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

DELTA

3°10'04"

4°04'57"

3°52'04"

0°13'21"

0°32'47"

18°12'16"

16°47'13"

RADIUS

1,552.00'

495.00'

984.93'

2,834.79'

2,647.54'

105.00'

135.00'

LENGTH

85.81'

35.27'

66.49'

11.01'

25.25'

33.36'

39.55'

CH. L

85.80'

35.26'

66.48'

11.01'

25.25'

33.22'

39.41'

CH. B

N88°11'58"E

S88°39'25"W

S09°57'19"E

N02°07'58"E

N02°15'13"E

N11°37'44"E

S12°20'16"W

21
6.

37
'

21
1.

04
'

N
 0

3°
56

'3
9"

 E
   

50
1.

29
'

S 86°03'21" E   759.41'

738.62' 250.54'

19
4.

55
'

21
6.

37
'

13.24'

C
7

N 20°43'52" E
43.47'

43
.9

2'

C4

LOT AREA TABLE

LOT/BLOCK

LOT 1, BLOCK A

LOT 1, BLOCK B

LOT 2, BLOCK A

LOT 3, BLOCK A

LOT 4, BLOCK A

LOT 5, BLOCK A

LOT 6, BLOCK A

LOT 7, BLOCK A

LOT 8, BLOCK A

LOT 9, BLOCK A

SQ. FT.

554,070

74,525

482,379

50,665

53,977

51,572

46,942

56,804

37,787

55,191

ACRES

12.720

1.711

11.074

1.163

1.239

1.184

1.078

1.304

0.867

1.267

67
6.

65
'

61
0.

97
'

669.68'

73
.8

8'

TARRANT COUNTY JUNIOR
COLLEGE DISTRICT

VOLUME 9073, PAGE 392

24' UTILITY EASEMENT

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH
 WATER EASEMENT

43.63'

1/2" IRF BEARS
S28°15'14"W, 0.51'

C
6

23
6 .

23
'

61
.4

'

52
.8

'

CENTERLINE POINT OF
BEGINNING

35
.0

'

35
.0

'

Δ
= 015°11'01"

R
=

26 63.5
4 '

L=7 05. 85'

C
h

L=703.79'

C
h

B
=N

05° 36'42"W

206.07'

3/8" IRF

1/2" CIRF 1/2" CIRF

1/2" IRF

SUBLETT KROGER
BLOCK A

31.896 ACRES
(1,389,395 SQ. FT.)

SUBLETT KROGER
LOT 1, BLOCK B

1.711 ACRES
(74,525 SQ. FT.)

10' UTILITY
 EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
 EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
 EASEMENT

WATER
EASEMENT

TXDOT
BMON

CENTERLINE

N 74° E; 565'± TO

SURVEY ABSTRACT CORNER

12.01'
C5

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION

EASEMENT

DRAINAGE EASEMENT
VOLUME 12593, PAGE 0225

10' UTILITY
 EASEMENT

12.5' UTILITY EASEMENT

30' ACCESS EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

5/8" IRF BEARS
S79°31'20"E, 1.66'

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE WATER
EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH
UTILITY EASEMENT

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH
ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

30' ACCESS & UTILITY
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION

EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION

EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION
EASEMENT

PRIVATE DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION

EASEMENT

B
. B

. B
. &

 C
. R

A
IL

R
O

A
D

 C
O

. S
U

R
V

E
Y

, A
B

S
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 2

03
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

A
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
,T

A
R

R
A

N
T 

C
O

U
N

TY
, T

E
X

A
S

K
R

O
G

E
R

 T
E

X
A

S
 L

P
75

1 
FR

E
E

P
O

R
T 

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
C

O
P

P
E

LL
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
50

19

31
59

1-
P

P
LT

05
.1

0.
16

1:
10

0_
X

R
E

F

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

31
59

1

D
at

e 
:

Sc
al

e 
:

Fi
le

 :

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
 :

G
:\3

15
\9

1\
S

U
R

V
E

Y
\P

la
ts

\3
15

91
-P

P
LT

.d
w

g

Te
xa

s 
E

ng
in

ee
rs

 R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
o.

 8
9

Te
xa

s 
S

ur
ve

yo
rs

 N
o.

 1
00

86
60

0 
E

xp
ire

s 
12

/3
1/

20
16

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

20
16

, W
in

ke
lm

an
n 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c.

Scale 1:100_XREF

ABBREVIATION LEGEND
ABBR.  DEFINITION
IRF  IRON ROD FOUND
CIRS  IRON ROD SET w/CAP STAMPED "WAI"
CIRF  IRON ROD FOUND w/CAP
XCS  "X" CUT IN CONCRETE SET
XCF  "X" CUT IN CONCRETE FOUND
PKS  PK NAIL SET
PKF  PK NAIL FOUND
AMON ALUMINUM MONUMENT FOUND
BMON BRASS MONUMENT FOUND
CC#  COUNTY CLERK'S INSTRUMENT No.
CM  CONTROLLING MONUMENT

N

S

EW

2001000 50

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

S
U

B
LE

T
T

 K
R

O
G

E
R

LO
TS

1 
-9

, B
LO

C
K

 A
, A

N
D

 L
O

T 
1,

 B
LO

C
K

 B

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SUBLETT KROGER

LOTS 1 -9, BLOCK A, AND LOT 1, BLOCK B
BEING 33.607 ACRES OUT OF THE B. B. B. & C. RAILROAD CO.

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 203
CITY OF ARLINGTON, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

APRIL 18, 2016 ~ 10 LOTS

OWNER
Kroger Texas LP
751 FREEPORT PARKWAY
COPPELL, TEXAS 75019
972-785-6015 Office
972-785-6080 fax
CONTACT: CHRISTINA KONRAD
christina.konrad@kroger.com

SURVEYOR / ENGINEER
WINKELMANN & ASSOCIATES, INC.
6750 HILLCREST PLAZA DRIVE
SUITE 325
DALLAS, TEXAS 75230
(972) 490-7090
CONTACT: MARIA BONILLA
mbonilla@winkelmann.com

NOTE:

VISIBILITY TRIANGLES SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL PUBLIC AND
PRIVATE STREET INTERSECTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
CURRENT CITY ORDINANCE.

ALL LANDSCAPING (NOTHING OVER 2 FEET IN HEIGHT AS
MEASURED FROM THE TOP OF CURB) WITHIN THE VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE VISIBILITY ORDINANCE.

LOTS 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, AND 9 WILL REQUIRE DETENTION AT TIME OF
DEVELOPMENT.

SITE

FLOOD NOTE

According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, Flood Insurance Rate Map
Community Panel No. 48439C0365K, dated September 25, 2009, this property is within Flood
Zone X.

Zone X - Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain. (Areas determined
to be outside the 500-year floodplain.)

This flood statement does not imply that the property and/or the structure thereon will be free from
flooding or flood damage.  On rare occasions, greater floods can and will occur and flood heights
may be increased by man-made or natural causes.  This flood statement shall not create liability
on the part of the surveyor.

DATA TABLE
Lots Number Use Acreage
Residential 0 Residential n/a

Non-residential 10 Public Street n/a

Total 10 Park/Open Space n/a

Other 33.607

Total 33.607



31
59

1-
P

P
LT

05
.1

0.
16

N
/A

D
at

e 
:

S
ca

le
 :

Fi
le

 :

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o.

 :

G
:\3

15
\9

1\
S

U
R

V
E

Y
\P

la
ts

\3
15

91
-P

P
LT

.d
w

g

K
R

O
G

E
R

 T
E

X
A

S
 L

P
75

1 
FR

E
E

P
O

R
T 

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
C

O
P

P
E

LL
, T

E
X

A
S

 7
50

19
31

59
1

B
. B

. B
. &

 C
. R

A
IL

R
O

A
D

 C
O

. S
U

R
V

E
Y

, A
B

S
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 2

03
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

A
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
TA

R
R

A
N

T 
C

O
U

N
TY

, T
E

X
A

S

N
o.

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
IO

N

Te
xa

s 
E

ng
in

ee
rs

 R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
o.

 8
9

Te
xa

s 
S

ur
ve

yo
rs

 N
o.

 1
00

86
60

0 
E

xp
ire

s 
12

/3
1/

20
16

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

20
16

, W
in

ke
lm

an
n 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c.

OWNERS CERTIFICATE
Lots 1 -9, Block A

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF TARRANT §

WHEREAS, We, Kroger Texas LP, are the sole owners of a tract of land situated in the B. B. B. & C. RAILROAD CO.
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 203, in the City of Arlington, Tarrant County, Texas, and being a of portion of a tract of land
described in a deed to Marc S. English recorded in Volume 12630, Page 1197, Official Public Records, Tarrant County,
Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point for corner from which a 1/2-inch iron rod found bears South 77 deg 55 min 44 sec West, a
distance of 0.85 feet, said point being the intersection of the Westerly right-of-way of S. Watson Road, a variable width
right-of-way, with the Northerly right-of-way of Southeast Parkway, a 70-foot right-of-way;

THENCE North 89 deg 49 min 41 sec West, along the Northerly of said Southeast Parkway right-of-way, a distance of
989.16 feet to a point for corner from which a 5/8-inch iron rod found bears South 79 deg 31 min 20 sec East, a distance
of 1.66 feet;

THENCE North 03 deg 56 min 39 sec East, departing the northerly right-of-way of said Southeast Parkway, a distance of
1287.63 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped "W.A.I." set for corner on the Southerly line of a tract of
land described in a deed to Dallas Power & Light Company recorded in Volume 5286, Page 934, Official Public Records,
Tarrant County, Texas;

THENCE North 67 deg 58 min 59 sec East, along the Southerly line of said Dallas Power & Light Company tract, a
distance of 878.48 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped "W.A.I." found for corner on the Westerly
right-of-way of S. Watson Road;

THENCE along the Westerly right of way of said S. Watson Road, the following courses and distances:

South 47 deg 12 min 21 sec East, a distance of 5.18 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped
"W.A.I."  set for corner, said point being the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 984.93 feet, a central
angle of 03 deg 52 min 04 sec, a chord bearing of South 09 deg 57 min 19 sec East, and a chord length of 66.48
feet;

Along said curve to the left, an arc distance of 66.49 feet to a TxDOT (Texas Department of Transportation) Brass
monument found for corner;

South 11 deg 53 min 21 sec East, a distance of 238.80 feet to a TxDOT Brass monument found for corner and the
beginning of a curve to the right having a radius 2834.79 feet, a central angle of 14 deg 08 min 05 sec, a chord
bearing of  South 04 deg 49 min 24 sec East, and a chord length of 697.56 feet;

Along said curve to the right, an arc distance of 699.34 feet to a TxDOT Brass monument found for corner;

South 02 deg 14 min 39 sec West, a distance of 165.41 feet to a TxDOT Brass monument found for corner;

THENCE South 03 deg 50 min 39 sec West, continuing along the Westerly right of way of said S. Watson Road, a
distance of 454.84 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING within these metes and bounds 31.896 acres or 1,389,395 square feet of land, more or less.

Bearings shown hereon are based upon an on-the-ground Survey performed in the field on the 13th day of January,
2016, utilizing a G.P.S. measurement (NAD 83) from the City of Arlington, GPS Monument Nos. AR56 and AR 55.

OWNERS CERTIFICATE
Lot 1, Block B

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF TARRANT §

WHEREAS, We, Kroger Texas LP, are the sole owners of a tract of land situated in the B. B. B. & C. RAILROAD CO.
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 203, in the City of Arlington, Tarrant County, Texas, and being a of portion of a tract of land
described in a deed to Marc S. English recorded in Volume 12630, Page 1197, Official Public Records, Tarrant County,
Texas, and being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point for corner on the Southerly right-of-way of East Sublett Road, a variable width right of way, from
which a 1/2-inch iron rod found bears South 28 deg 15 min 14 sec W, a distance of 0.51 feet, said point being the
Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block B, of Harwood Meadows Phase II Addition, an addition to the City of Arlington, Tarrant
County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Cabinet A, Slide 3397, Official Public Records, Tarrant County,
Texas;

THENCE along the Southerly right-of-way of said East Sublett Road, the following courses and distances:

North 89 deg 47 min 00 sec East, a distance of 300.67 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped
"W.A.I." set for corner, said point being the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius 1,552.00 feet, a central
angle of 03 deg 10 min 04 sec, a chord bearing of North 88 deg 11 min 58 sec East, and a chord length of 85.80
feet;

Along said curve to the left, an arc distance of 85.81 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped "W.A.I."
set for corner;

North 86 deg 36 min 56 sec East, a distance of 134.36 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped
"W.A.I." set for corner, said point being the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius 495.00 feet, a central
angle of 04 deg 04 min 57 sec, a chord bearing of North 88 deg 39 min 25 sec East, and chord length of 35.26 feet;

Along said curve to the right, an arc distance of 35.27 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped "W.A.I."
set for corner;

South 89 deg 18 min 07 sec East, a distance of 62.27 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped
"W.A.I." set for corner at the intersection of the Southerly right-of-way of said East Sublett Road with the
Northwesterly line of a tract of land described in a deed to Dallas Power & Light Company recorded in Volume 5286,
Page 934, Official Public Records, Tarrant County, Texas;

THENCE South 67 deg 58 min 59 sec West, departing the Southerly right-of-way of said East Sublett Road, along the
Northwesterly line of said Dallas Power & Light Company tract, a distance of 684.90 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with red
plastic cap stamped "W.A.I." set for corner, said point being the Southeast corner of Lot 2, Block B of said Harwood
Meadows Phase II Addition;

THENCE North 03 deg 56 min 39 sec East, along the Easterly line of said Lot 2, Block B, a distance 245.50 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING within these metes and bounds 1.711 acres or 74,525 square feet of land, more or less. Bearings shown
hereon are based upon an on-the-ground Survey performed in the field on the 13th day of January, 2016, utilizing a
G.P.S. measurement (NAD 83) from the City of Arlington, GPS Monument Nos. AR56 and AR 55.

OWNER’S DEDICATION

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT Kroger Texas LP, acting by and through the undersigned, its duly authorized agent, does hereby adopt this plat
designating the hereinabove described real property as SUBLETT KROGER , Lots 1 -9, Block A, and Lot 1, Block B, an
addition to the City of Arlington, Tarrant County, Texas, except the private easements shown thereon, and do hereby
dedicate to the public-foots use the streets and easements shown thereon.

Pursuant to Section 12.002 of the Texas Property Code, as amended, I have obtained original tax certificates from each
taxing unit with jurisdiction over each parcel of real property in said subdivision indicating that no delinquent ad valorem
taxes owed on the real property which is the subject of the plat or replat I have submitted to the City of Arlington, Tarrant
County, Texas for filing and recording with the Tarrant County Clerk-foots office.

THIS PLAT DOES NOT ALTER OR REMOVE EXISTING DEED RESTRICTIONS OR COVENANTS, IF ANY, ON THIS
PROPERTY.

WITNESS UNDER MY HAND THIS THE _____ day of ______________________ , 2016.

KROGER TEXAS L.P., an Ohio limited partnership
By:  KRGP Inc., an Ohio corporation, its general partner

By:______________________________________
Rick J. Landrum
Vice President

 
STATE OF OHIO §
COUNTY OF ________ §
 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this day personally appeared Rick J.
Landrum, Vice President of KRGP Inc., an Ohio corporation and the general partner of Kroger Texas L.P., an Ohio limited
partnership, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to
me that he executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein.
 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS THE _________ DAY OF ______________________, 2016.
 
______________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Ohio

SURVEYOR’S CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that I, Leonard J. Lueker, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor of the State of Texas, have platted
the above subdivision from an actual survey on the ground, and that this plat correctly represents that survey made by
me or under my direction and supervision.

Dated this the____ day of ____________________, 2016.

_________________________________________________________
Leonard J. Lueker
Registered Professional Land Surveyor
Texas Registration # 5714
Winkelmann & Associates, Inc.
6750 Hillcrest Plaza Drive, Suite 325
Dallas, Texas  75230
490-7090

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF DALLAS §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Leonard J. Lueker, known to me to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same
for the purpose and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein stated, and as the act and deed of said
partnership.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on the __________ day of _____________________, 2016.

____________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

My Commission Expires:
____________________________

Approved by the City of Arlington Planning and Zoning Commission on ______________________, 2016.

__________________________________________________
Chairman - Planning and Zoning Commission

__________________________________________________
Secretary - Planning and Zoning Commission

GENERAL NOTES

THIS PLAT SUBJECT TO AIRPORT HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONES (CONTOURS 710-780)

The City of Arlington reserves the right to require minimum finish floor elevations on any lots within this addition.

Visibility Triangles shall be provided at all public or private street or driveway intersections in accordance with current City
Ordinance.  All landscaping (nothing over 2 feet in height as measured from the top of the curb) within the visibility
triangles shall comply with the Visibility Ordinance.

This property may be subject to charges related to impact fees and the applicant should contact the City regarding any
applicable fees due.

THE CITY OF ARLINGTON IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION,
MAINTENANCE, OR USE OF THE FOLLOWING:

PRIVATE WATER STORAGE FACILITY (DETENTION POND) AND ASSOCIATED PRIVATE DRAINAGE EASEMENT,
PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS PRIVATE STORM DRAIN SYSTEMS
LOCATED ON LOTS 1 -9, AND THEIR ASSOCIATED PRIVATE DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, -ANY STORM WATER
TREATMENT FACULTY (IDENTIFIED AS A BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE(S) (BMPs) FOR STORM WATER
QUALITY IN THE ACCEPTED STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SITE PLAN FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT) AND ITS
ASSOCIATED DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, -HEREINAFTER COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO AS “IMPROVEMENTS”,
DEVELOPED AND CONSTRUCTED BY DEVELOPER OR HIS PREDECESSORS, OR TO BE DEVELOPED AND
CONSTRUCTED BY DEVELOPER OR HIS SUCCESSORS. DEVELOPER WILL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD
HARMLESS THE CITY OF ARLINGTON, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS FROM ANY DIRECT OR
INDIRECT LOSS, DAMAGE, LIABILITY OR EXPENSE AND ATTORNEYS-foot FEES FOR ANY NEGLIGENCE
ARISING OUT OF THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, CONDITION OR USE OF THE
IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING ANY NON-PERFORMANCE OF THE FOREGOING. DEVELOPER WILL REQUIRE
ANY SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST OF ALL OR PART OF THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING ANY PROPERTY OWNERS
ASSOCIATION TO ACCEPT FULL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR THE IMPROVEMENTS. ALL OF THE
ABOVE SHALL BE COVENANTS RUNNING WITH THE LAND. DEVELOPER SHALL IMPOSE THESE COVENANTS
UPON LOTS 1 -9, ABUTTING, ADJACENT OR SERVED BY THE IMPROVEMENTS. THE COVENANTS SHALL
INCLUDE THE FULL OBLIGATION AND RESPONSIBILITY OF MAINTAINING AND OPERATING SAID
IMPROVEMENTS. ACCESS TO THE IMPROVEMENTS IS GRANTED TO THE CITY FOR ANY PURPOSE RELATED
TO THE EXERCISE OF GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES OR FUNCTIONS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, FIRE
AND POLICE PROTECTION, INSPECTION AND CODE ENFORCEMENT.

THE CITY OF ARLINGTON WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR, OR MAINTAIN ANY NON-DRAINAGE RELATED
IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE DRAINAGE EASEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PAVING AND FENCES.
DEVELOPER, OR HIS SUCCESSOR, WILL JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY OPERATE AND MAINTAIN THE
IMPROVEMENTS. THIS RESPONSIBILITY WILL INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, THE FOLLOWING: FREQUENT
MOWING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FIRE PREVENTION AND NUISANCE CHAPTERS OF THE CITY CODE, AS
AMENDED, AND ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF THE IMPROVEMENTS AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS. PERIODIC
REMOVAL OF DEBRIS FROM THE IMPROVEMENTS AND DRAINAGE AREAS. THE IMPROVEMENTS AND
DRAINAGE AREA CROSS SECTIONS WILL BE MAINTAINED TO THE APPROVED DESIGNED SLOPE, GRADE,
CONTOUR, AND VOLUME, INCLUDING ANY CONCRETE STRUCTURES. AREAS OF EROSION WILL BE
REPAIRED. SOIL MATERIALS USED IN REPAIRS WILL BE OF CONSISTENT AND COMPATIBLE
CHARACTERISTICS WITH THE SURROUNDING MATERIALS AND SHALL BE COMPACTED TO A DENSITY
EQUALING THAT OF THE UNDISTURBED SURROUNDING MATERIAL. NO ADDITIONAL IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE
ALLOWED WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS WITHOUT THE ADVANCE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS OF THE CITY OF ARLINGTON. UPON REQUEST FROM THE CITY, PROVIDING
ANNUALLY, ON OR BEFORE JANUARY 31 0F EACH YEAR TO THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS OF THE CITY
OF ARLINGTON, A WRITTEN REPORT SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBING THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF
THE IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE PRECEDING YEAR INCLUDING PROCEDURES USED, THE NAMES OF PERSONS
RESPONSIBLE FOR EACH PROCEDURE AND THE DATE OF EACH PROCEDURE, RESPECTIVELY.

_______________________________
Developer's/Owner's signature

PRELIMINARY ~ This
document shall not be

recorded for any purpose.

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

S
U

B
LE

T
T

 K
R

O
G

E
R

LO
TS

1 
-9

, B
LO

C
K

 A
, A

N
D

 L
O

T 
1,

 B
LO

C
K

 B

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SUBLETT KROGER

LOTS 1 -9, BLOCK A, AND LOT 1, BLOCK B
BEING 33.607 ACRES OUT OF THE B. B. B. & C. RAILROAD CO.

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 203
CITY OF ARLINGTON, TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS

APRIL 18, 2016 ~ 10 LOTS

OWNER
Kroger Texas LP
751 FREEPORT PARKWAY
COPPELL, TEXAS 75019
972-785-6015 Office
972-785-6080 fax
CONTACT: CHRISTINA KONRAD
christina.konrad@kroger.com

SURVEYOR / ENGINEER
WINKELMANN & ASSOCIATES, INC.
6750 HILLCREST PLAZA DRIVE
SUITE 325
DALLAS, TEXAS 75230
(972) 490-7090
CONTACT: MARIA BONILLA
mbonilla@winkelmann.com



 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-18 (Woodside Townhomes) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date: 11-9-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-18 with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On October 19, 1994, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of P94-
62 for a retirement village which includes a nursing home, independent living center, 
personal care facility, and cottages by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
On November 8, 1994, City Council approved first reading of P94-62. 
 
On November 15, 1994, City Council approved P94-62 by a vote of 8-0-0. 
 
On August 20, 1997, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of P94-
62-R1 to alter the original site design by a vote of 6-2-0.   
 
On September 9, 1997, City Council approved first reading of P94-62-R1 by a vote of 9-0-0. 
 
On October 28, 1997, City Council approved P94-62-R1 by a vote of 8-1-0. 
 
On March 6, 2002, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of P94-62-
R4 to add all Residential (R1) uses to a portion of the site by a vote of 9-0-0.   
 
On March 19, 2002, City Council approved first reading of P94-62-R4 by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
On March 26, 2002, City Council approved P94-62-R4 by a vote of 7-0-1. 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 5.50 acres addressed at 2501 
Woodside Drive, and generally located south of West Arkansas Lane and east of Woodside 
Drive.  
 
Current zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for a retirement village 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for Residential Medium-Density (RM-12) 

uses, with a Development Plan 
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject site was part of a previously approved Planned Development (PD).  The overall 
PD was for a retirement village which included a nursing home, an independent living 
center, a personal care facility, and a small cottage development.  Residential (R1) uses 
were added in 2002 to the southwest portion of the development.  The subject site, 2501 
Woodside Drive, never evolved as the cottage portion of the retirement village, and is 
currently undeveloped.   
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
To the west of the subject site is part of the existing PD and is developed with the nursing 
home, independent living center, personal care facility, and single-family uses. Properties to 



Page 2 of 5 

 

the north, east and south are zoned Residential Single-Family (RS-7.2) and developed with 
single-family homes. 
 
Density 
The Residential Medium-Density zoning category allows for a maximum of 12 dwelling units 
per acre.  The following table illustrates densities of the adjacent developments and zoning 
categories: 
 

Adjacent Property Density 

Development Name or 
Zoning Category 

Location in Comparison to 
Subject Site Density 

Cottages of P94-62 
 (existing site zoning) 

Subject Site 
Density of 5.82 dwelling 

units per acre 

PD14-15 Knott’s Landing Southwest 
Density of 5.25 dwelling 

units per acre 

P94-62-R4 – Residential 
(R1) uses in existing PD 

West 
Density of 4.82 dwelling 

units per acre 

Residential Single-Family 
7.2 (RS-7.2) 

North, East, and South 
Maximum density of 6 
dwelling units per acre 

 
Development Plan 
The proposal is for a 33-unit, townhome product.  The development is proposing a density 
of 6.02 dwelling units per acre, which is significantly less dense than the 12 dwelling units 
per acre that is typically allowed in RM-12.  The proposed development is seeking deviations 
from minimum lot area as well as minimum lot depth on a number of lots.  The following is 
a comparison of the Unified Development Code (UDC) requirements and the Development 
Plan proposal: 
 

Section 2.2.7.C Lot Dimensions – Residential Medium-Density (RM-12) 

 UDC 
Requirement Proposed 

Number of lots meeting 
UDC requirements 

Lot Area 
2,900 square- 
feet minimum 

Average: 4,340 sq. ft. 
Minimum: 2,880 sq. ft. 

Maximum: 10,114 sq. ft. 
29 of 33 Lots 

Lot Width 
20-feet 

minimum 

Average: 37.5-feet 
Minimum: 20.7-feet 
Maximum: 53.4-feet 

33 of 33 lots 

Lot Depth 
100-feet 
minimum 

Average: 98.11-feet 
Minimum: 82.3-feet 

Maximum: 152.7-feet 
17 of 33 lots 

Section 2.2.7.E Building Standards – Residential Medium-Density (RM-12) 

Lot Coverage 75% maximum 
Average: 37.87% 
Minimum: 15.92% 
Maximum: 53.6% 

33 of 33 lots 

 
The proposed housing types are unique in their adaptation to UDC requirements that front 
loading, front facing garages cannot project from the front façade of the building.  These 
housing types include a walled and roofed front porch area that leads into an open air 
courtyard, before leading to the structure’s front door.  The applicant has indicated that 



Page 3 of 5 

 

some of the entry porches will be a single story, while others will include an additional room 
on the second floor above the entry porch.  The proposed townhomes will exceed the 800 
square foot minimum living area required in the RM-12 zoning district by requiring the 
minimum living area in all units to be 1,000 square feet.  The following metrics have been 
produced in order to achieve the anti-monotony standards set forth in the UDC: 
 

1. Exterior Materials 
a. Primary building materials are brick and stone and are distributed amongst 

adjacent unit types so as to create a unique character to each unit.   
2. Fenestration 

a. A variety of window types, sizes and locations are to be used throughout the 
development to create a unique character at each unit. 

3. Entryways 
a. Each entryway is to have a unique character within a grouping of units to 

differentiate each townhouse. 
4. Building Form 

a. Where appropriate, building forms incorporate varying articulations at the 
public elevation to differentiate each townhouse. 

 
Landscaping 
Tree Preservation 
Section 5.2.3, Tree Preservation and Replacement of the UDC requires that residential 
development that is over one acre in size preserve a minimum of 35% of the protected tree 
species on site.  The proposed site layout is only able to preserve a total of 32% of the 
protected trees; however, the applicant is proposing to use the additional 117.5 positive 
tree points (an additional 117.5 caliper inches of tree coverage) to mitigate for the 3% they 
were unable to preserve.   
 
Woodside Drive and Internal Streetscapes 
This development is proposing to install 20, four-inch caliper trees within the six-foot wide 
landscape buffer adjacent to Woodside Drive.  They are proposing to alternate using four 
different species of trees within this buffer as the UDC will not allow for more than 30% of 
this requirement to be met with one single species of tree.  Along portions of Woodside 
Drive, this landscape buffer abuts a proposed decorative metal and masonry fence, while 
another portion abuts a proposed 6-foot tall masonry wall.  The decorative metal fencing 
allows for views into the internal green spaces that are landscaped with trees and an 
additional 15 landscape beds.  Entrance features at both access points off of Woodside Drive 
contain a landscaped bed featuring a mixture of six different species of plants, as well as a 
curved wall, and a masonry and stone entry monument.  
 
The applicant is proposing to comply with the Residential Streetscape Design portion of the 
UDC by providing the six-foot parkway and five-foot sidewalk in the right-of-way of the 
internal streets.  These internal streetscapes are also complying with standards by using the 
same four species of trees as the Woodside Drive streetscape, and will have a total of 53 
trees, all four-inch caliper.   
 
Front Yard Landscaping 
Each individual lot will meet the front yard landscaping requirements of the UDC, which are:  

- Six shrubs 
- One tree (proposed at three-inch caliper)  



Page 4 of 5 

 

A number of lots on the northern and eastern edges of the development have preserved 
trees located between the proposed structures and the single-family lots adjacent to them.  
 
Fencing 
The development is proposing the use of four different fencing types. These include 
perimeter fencing that is located on Woodside Drive and adjacent to the single family 
developments that surround the subject site, and privacy fencing that pertains to each 
individually developed lot.  The following are the proposed requirement with this 
Development Plan: 
 

Planned Development Fencing Requirements 

Perimeter 
Fence Types 

6-foot Masonry Wall 
Lots that back up to 6-foot streetscape 

setback along Woodside Drive 

4-foot Decorative Metal with 
Masonry Columns 

X-Lots adjacent to Woodside Drive 

6-foot Spruce, with Metal Posts Adjacent to existing single family lots 

Privacy Fence 
Types 

6-foot Decorative Metal with 
Metal Posts 

Individual lots adjacent to open space 

6-foot Spruce, with Metal Posts 
Individual lots adjacent to other 

residential lots 

 
Open Space 
The common open space requirement for a single family, attached development with more 
than five units is at least 200 square feet per unit.  The proposed development would 
require a minimum of 6,600 square feet of open space.  The applicant has included the 
following types of open spaces within the development: 
 

Open Space Requirements 

 Required Proposed 

Overall Site Open Space 6,600 square feet 

Active Open Space – 22,092 
square feet 

Landscaped Open Space – 
18,333 square feet  

 
This equates to 40,425 square feet of open space, or about 16.9% of the total development 
itself.  Two of the proposed X-lots will contain tree lined trails that add additional pedestrian 
connectivity throughout the site.  One of these trails has a bench shaded by preserved and 
proposed trees.  
 
Parking 
The UDC requires that each townhome have a minimum of two parking spaces per dwelling 
unit.  These two spaces are required to be located within a minimum 390 square foot 
garage.  The proposed development will meet both of these minimum requirements.  The 
driveways located on the residential lots will also be a minimum of 20 feet in depth, 
measured from the property line, in order to accommodate for visitor parking.  The wider 
lots within the development will also allow for on-street parking with an estimated 50 
spaces available. 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 

Deviations  
The proposed Development Plan is seeking deviations from the following UDC requirements: 

- Section 2.2.7.C Lot Dimensions 
o Minimum Lot Area – 2,900 square feet 

 Proposed Minimum Lot Area – 2,880 square feet (deviation on 4 lots) 
o Minimum Lot Depth – 100 feet 

 Proposed Minimum Lot Depth – 82 feet (deviation on 16 lots) 
- Section 5.2.3.B Residential Development: Tree Preservation Requirements 

o All residential developments shall preserve a minimum of 35 percent of the 
existing total protected caliper inches.   

 Proposal – Preserve 32 percent of the existing, protected caliper inches 
and mitigate the remaining three percent with the 117.5 caliper inches 
being proposed.  

 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The 2015 Comprehensive Plan, 99 Square Miles, contains goals in this area to develop 
residential neighborhoods with a variety of housing styles, to encourage the provision of 
affordable quality housing to attract new middle and upper income families to Arlington, as 
well as providing high quality housing options for Arlington’s current residents. Multi-family 
developments are appropriate in this development area with a density of up to 30 units per 
acre. The proposed PD is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and other relevant 
plans. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (9 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE December 6, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Bryan Isham 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6654 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Development Plan PD16-18  i-1 

Prepared:   10-7-16    BRYAN ISHAM 

Applicant: Cole Design Group, represented by Ronald Salamie 

 

Property Owner:  JLM Capital Investments LLC, represented by Russell Martin 

 

Sector Plan:  West 

 

Council District:  4 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted and commonly known as 

Lot 1, Block 2, of the Marmid Addition.   

 

 Previous zoning cases for the subject site and in the general 

vicinity in the past five years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

P94-62 Subject Site PD for a retirement 

village: nursing 

home, independent 

living center, 

personal care 

facility, and cottages 

Approved 

Z02-09 Subject Site Added all R1 uses to 

the previous planned 

development 

Approved 

PD11-6 North PD for limited O 

uses 

Approved 

PD14-15 South PD for all RS-5 uses, 

with a Development 

Plan 

Approved 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has two points of access from 

Woodside Drive. 

  

Thoroughfare Existing Per TDP 

Woodside Drive 70-foot ROW          

2-lane collector 

70-foot ROW          

2-lane collector 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed PD zoning increases the number of townhomes 

from 17 to 33 and increases the Average Daily Traffic from 99 

to 193. The AM and PM Peak traffic increases from 5 vehicles to 

16 vehicles. The proposed zoning will not impact the adjacent 

street system. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water is available from a 6-inch water line in Woodside Dr. 

Sanitary Sewer is available from an 8-inch sanitary sewer line 

in an easement bisecting the property. 



Case Information  
   

 

Development Plan PD16-18  i-2 

Prepared:   10-7-16    BRYAN ISHAM 

 

Drainage: The site is located within the Rush Creek drainage basin. No 

portion of the site is located in a floodplain. No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as the site complies with relevant city 

ordinances. 

 

Fire: Fire Station 14, located at 5501 Ron McAndrew Drive, provides 

protection to this site.  The estimated fire response time is less 

than five minutes, which is in keeping with recommended 

standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District  

 

 The proposed request is located in the Arlington Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owner’s Association 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Hilldale-Mintwood 

Kingswick On Patrol Crime Watch 

Quail Hollow on the Lane Owner’s Association 

Villas of Tuscany Home Owner’s Association 

Villas on the Parc 

Whitemarsh Estates Home Owner’s Association 

Williams Place Addition 

Wooded Acres 

Southwest Arlington Property Owners (SWAPO) 

  Property Owners: 52 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD16-18   ii-1 

Prepared:   10-7-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

 

Allowable Uses: Residential Medium-Density (RM12) 

 

Permitted - Dwelling, duplex on minimum 6,000 square feet, 

Dwelling, single-family detached Dwelling, on minimum 7,200 

Square Feet, townhouse on minimum 2,900 square feet, Non-

Residential on minimum 15,000 square foot lots, Assisted living 

facility (≤6 residents), Community home for disabled persons, 

Foster family home, Foster group homes, Government 

administration and civic buildings helter, Religious assembly, 

Public or private school, Cemetery, Community garden, Public 

park or playground, Golf course, Utility lines, towers or 

metering station, garage-private, and accessory swimming 

pool-private. 

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) - Assisted living facility (≥7 

residents), Philanthropic institution (other than listed), Bed and 

breakfast inn, Country club, Marina, Airport or landing field, 

Gas well, Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth 

towers ≤100 ft., Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., 

Stealth towers >100 ft. 

 

Conditions (C) – Dwelling, live/work, Nursing home, 

Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted antennae and 

towers, Nursery garden shop or plant sales, Telecommunication 

Facilities Building-mounted antennae and towers.  

 



RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2 RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RMF-22

PD

PD

PD

RS-7.2
PD
RS-7.2

RS-7.2

PD

PD

P94-62

P95-40

Z83-46/P-125

Z83 - 8 8/ P- 13 5

PD11-6

PD14-15

W ARKANSAS LN

RUSHMOOR DR
WOODS IDE

DR

CHURCHWOOD DR

MIDDLEBROO K DR

RAMSGATE CT

LONGACRES CT

WOODHILL DR

TROWBRIDGE DR

CR
EE

KV
IE

W 
DR

TR
EE

VI
EW

 D
R

LIT
TL

E R
D

CR
ES

TM
OO

R 
CT

MI
DH

UR
ST

 D
R

RI
DG

EM
OO

R 
CT

PARK RUN
DR

02310
02308

02307

04514

04104

04115

02420

02422

02602

04305 04303

02322

04103

02311

02304
02302

02400

02401

02511

04108

04000

02606

04117

02703

04400

04100
04515

02510

02517

02506

02710

0262002621

02705

04503 04411

02609

02503

04106

02507

02409

02426

02803

04409

02611

02615

02301

02323

02607

04105
04112

02617

02708

02618

04507

02312

02309 02306

04506

02416

02505
02424

02604

02605

02707

04309 04307

02315

02509

02421

02608

04311

02418

02520

04109

04107

04111

02720 02721

02305

02810

02526
02524

02502

02518

02504

04600

0420004204

04404

04202

04205

04304
04216

04215

02201

04408
04308

04220

04705
04701

04509

04508
04604

04602

04219

04505

0460604700

04708

04504

02203

02325

02319

04502

02324

04201

02412

02404 02405
02407

02601

02706
02704

02614
02610

02804

02314

04208

02408

04102

04207

04500

02320

02316

04406

02303

02500

02318

02612

04401

02702

02410
02501

04511 04405

02700

02603
02600

0261604410
04510

02701

04301

04611

02807

02718

04610

02714

04609

04212

04612

02715

04607

02805

02801

02717

04120

02808

02802

02711

04605

02225

02219

02211

02317

02719

02809

04210

04211

02508

04101

02435

04110

02223

02217

02209

04206

04209

02419

02415

02300

04608

02215

02221

04195

04300

04203

04704

0450104601

02321

02512

02619

04403

02800

02709

04603

/

LOCATION MAP
PD16-18

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 10-7-2016

PD FOR RM-12 at 6.02 D.U.A.
WITH A DEVELOPMENT PLAN

BI

This product is for informational purposes and may not have  been prepared for or be
suitable for lega l, engineering, or surveying purposes . It does  not represent an

on- the-ground survey  and represents only  the  approx imate relative  location of  property  boundaries . 
0 350175

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-18 

South of West Arkansas Lane and east of Woodside Drive  

  

View of subject site.  View north. View of adjacent single family residences 

located east of the subject site.  View east. 

  

View of adjacent nursing home facility across 

Woodside Drive.  View west. 

View of adjacent single family residences 

located south of the subject site.  View south. 

  

 



















SPRUCE PICKETS

SPRUCE RAILS



 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD07-18R4 (Arlington Highlands East) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  11-09-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD07-18R4, with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On November 6, 2007, City Council approved final reading of PD07-18 by a vote of 9-0-0. 
  
ANALYSIS 
Request 
The applicant requests a revision to the development plan on approximately 19.425 acres 
addressed at 415 Curtis Mathis Way, 4000 Bagpiper Way, and 401, 415, and 421 East 
Interstate 20 Highway, and generally located north of East Interstate 20 Highway and east 
of Matlock Road. 
 
Current zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for all Community Commercial (CC) uses 

plus indoor theatre (under 100,000 square feet); grocery sales, as a 
primary use (under 100,000 square feet); large scale retail (100,000 
square feet or larger); restaurants (less than 5,000 square feet); full-
service hotel; and indoor recreation as an accessory use, with a 
Development Plan. 

 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for all Community Commercial (CC) uses 

plus indoor theatre (under 100,000 square feet); grocery sales, as a 
primary use (under 100,000 square feet); large scale retail (100,000 
square feet or larger); restaurants (less than 5,000 square feet); and 
indoor recreation as an accessory use, with a revised Development and 
Sign Plan. 

 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject 19.425 acre site is developed and located north of East Interstate 20 Highway 
and east of Matlock Road.  The original plan for the site was approved on November 6, 2007 
as Business Park – Planned Development (BP-PD) for all Business Park – Community Service 
(BP-CS) uses plus indoor theatre (under 100,000 square feet); grocery sales as a primary 
use (under 100,000 square feet); large scale retail (100,000 square feet or larger); 
restaurants (less than 5,000 square feet); full-service hotel; and indoor recreation as an 
accessory use with Airport Overlay 2 (AP2). 
 
PD07-18R3, administratively approved April 28, 20016, revised the site plan to allow for a 
single patio cover to replace six awnings over an outdoor seating area located at Dave and 
Busters. 
 
PD07-18R2, administratively approved April 3, 2008, revised the building footprint of 
Buildings C, D, E, F, G, H, and the parking layouts proposed to serve each building. 
 
PD07-18R1, administratively approved March 5, 2008, revised the building footprint of 
Buildings A and B, in addition to their respective parking layouts. 
 
Currently the site has been completely developed with the exception of the proposed hotel 
location.  With that stated the development is essentially fully developed with retail and 
restaurant uses.   
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
Adjacent Land Uses 
The subject site is surrounded by properties zoned for Planned Developments focused on 
retail, and restaurant uses.  The property is bordered on the north by Highlander Boulevard 
and south by Interstate Highway 20 West.  The property north of Highlander Boulevard is 
currently zoned General Commercial (GC) however it remains undeveloped.  To the east, the 
City is currently completing the construction of South Center Street and the South Center 
Street Bridge. 
 
Proposed Development Plan 
The applicant is requesting a revision to the approved development plan in order to update 
the site plan to show additional retail development on the pad site that was originally 
occupied by the Splitsville restaurant and gaming franchise which has recently been 
demolished.  Additionally the applicant would like to include the vacant pad site to the east 
of this location.  This pad was originally approved as the location of the future hotel use 
which never materialized.   
 
In addition to the revision to the approved site plan, the applicant is requesting additional 
signage at the site.  Two new signs are being requested at this location:  
 

 One new type A, 50-foot tall, 512-square-foot sign to be located at the base of the 
newly constructed Center Street Bridge 

 One type B, 17-foot tall, 73-square-foot sign to be located along Highlander 
Boulevard.  This sign shall be placed on the northwest corner of the development.  
This sign was approved with the original PD; however’ it was never constructed. 

 One type E, 25-foot tall, 171-square-foot sign to be located along South Center 
Street.  This sign shall be placed the east central entry point of the development.  
This sign was approved with the original PD; however’ this request is increasing the 
overall height from 20-feet to 25-feet and the square footage by 50 square feet.    

 One new type F, 20-foot tall, 80-square-foot sign, that shall serve as a gateway entry 
feature to be located on the southwest corner of Highlander Boulevard and South 
Center Street.  This sign shall include features from both the type A and B signs that 
are currently located at the site. 

 
All of the proposed signs shall incorporate cast stone, modular brick, and aluminum panels 
that shall match the existing signs in the development.  The newly proposed signs are being 
requested in order to improve the visibility of the site due to the construction of the new 
Center Street Bridge (type A sign), and to create a major site identity sign at the 
intersection created by the extension of South Center Street.  
 
Staff Consideration: 

 Signs one (type A), and three (type E), are closely spaced along South Center Street 
creating reduced effectiveness and visual clutter.  Staff recommends the removal of 
sign three in order to reduce the effect of this on such a short span of public right-of-
way. 

 
Comprehensive Plan 
The subject site is identified in 99 Square Miles, The Comprehensive Plan, as a Regional 
Activity Center. This area provides the opportunity to create special places that include 
residential, retail, offices, and entertainment. These areas are typically considerably larger 
and more diverse in land uses than other land use classifications. The Comprehensive Plan 
does not address signage; rather, it leaves sign recommendations and requirements to the 
Sign Chapter of the Unified Development Code. The proposed Planned Development 
amendment is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos 
 v. Sign Plan (6 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE December 6, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Planning Manager, Land Development Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov   Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
  

Zoning Case: PD07-18R4  i-1 

Prepared:   09-28-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Applicant: Mycoskie McInnis Associates, represented by Cliff Mycoskie   

 

Owner: CPT Arlington Highlands 2, LP and CPT Arlington Highlands 

Development, LP c/o AEW Arlington highlands 2, LP, 

represented by Matt Fortuin  

 

Sector Plan:  Southeast 

 

Council District:  3 

 

Allowable Uses: See attachment ii-1 

 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted and commonly known as 

Lot 1R, and Lots 2-5, Block A of the Arlington Highlands East 

Addition.  The subject site is currently developed as the 

Arlington Highlands East. 

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

PD12-21 East BP-PD for all BP-CS 

uses, plus larger 

scale retail (100,000 

square feet or 

larger), restaurants 

(less than 5,000 

square feet), and 

limited service hotel 

within AP2 with a 

revised 

Development Plan. 

Approved 

PD15-2 North Planned 

Development (PD) 

for limited Office 

Commercial (OC) 

uses plus an 

Independent Senior 

Living facility, with a 

Development Plan 

Approved 

SUP13-9 South Specific Use Permit 

(SUP) for new motor 

vehicle sales 

Approved 

SUP15-3 South Limited Services 

Hotel 

Approved 

  

 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD07-18R4  i-2 

Prepared:   09-28-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Transportation: The proposed development has points of access from East 

Interstate 20 Highway, South Center Street, and Highlander 

Boulevard. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed PD zoning for retail will generate similar traffic to 

the existing PD zoning and will not impact the adjacent street 

system. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water is available from an 8" water line in Highlander Blvd. 

Sanitary sewer is available from an 8" sanitary sewer line 

located in a 15' sanitary sewer easement on lots 1R & 5. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the Fish Creek drainage basin.  The site 

has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

Fire: Fire Station Number 6, located at 2620 South Collins Street, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District. 

 

 The proposed zoning request is located in the Arlington 

Independent School District and has no impact on the schools 

serving this site.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thoroughfare Existing  Proposed 

East Interstate 20 

Highway 

Varies 2-lane 

undivided one-way 

Varies 3-lane 

undivided one-

way 

South Center Street 120-foot, 6-lane 

divided major 

arterial 

120-foot, 6-lane 

divided major 

arterial 

Highlander Boulevard 70-foot, 4-lane 

undivided major 

collector 

70-foot, 4-lane 

undivided major 

collector 

 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD07-18R4  i-3 

Prepared:   09-28-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: Arlington Chamber of Commerce Downtown Development 

 Arlington Neighborhood Council 

 East Arlington Review 

 Southeast Arlington Community Alliance 

 WeCan (West Citizen Action Network) 

 Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

 Fitzgerald Concerned Citizens 

  Property Owners: 5 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



Itemized Allowable Uses 
 

 

Zoning Case:  PD07-18R4   ii-1 

Prepared:   9-28-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Allowable Uses: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT for Community Commercial (PD-CC) 

 

    

Permitted- Veterinary clinic; auto parts, accessory sales and service; 

motor vehicle rental; custom and craft work; day care; hospital; 

offices; lodge or fraternal organization; racquet or swim club; theater 

(indoor); full service and limited service hotel; nursing home; antique 

shop; business school; catering service; cleaning laundry; copy center; 

garden shop or plant sales; general home improvement sales; general 

retail store, other than listed; museum or art gallery; personal 

household service, other than listed; rental store; restaurants with 

indoor recreation as an accessory use; radio or TV station recording 

studio  

 

Allowed per the PD- Indoor theatre (under 100,000 square feet), 

grocery sales as a primary use (under 100,000 square feet), large 

scale retail (100,000 square feet or larger), restaurants (less than 

5,000 square feet), with final development plan approval with “AP2” 

(Airport Overlay 2) 

 

Restricted- Domestic violence shelter, mortuary/crematory/funeral 

chapel, pawn shop, second-hand goods store, medical or scientific 

research laboratory, halfway house, alternative financial institution, 

bail bond service, banquet hall, tattoo parlor, Gun range, specialty 

paraphernalia sales, wrecker service, gas well, Food processing, 

Sexually oriented business. 
 



SUP08-15
SUP13-9SUP15-3

PD

APO-IMCC

OC

IM
APO-IM

GC

APO-PD

GC

APO-PD

APO-PD

APO-PD

PD

OC

GC

GC

Z05-08/P05-08
PD07-18R2

Z05-45/P05-45

PD12-21/P05-45R 3

PD15-2
CE

NT
RE

WA
Y 

PL
C

BE
LT

WA
Y 

PL
C

S
CE

NT
ER

ST

E INTERSTATE 20 HWY

WESTWAY PLC

HIGHLANDER BLV

E INTERSTATE 20 FWY
E I20 EB 451 ENTR RMP

W I20 WB 450 EXIT RMP

FIV
E 

PO
IN

TS
 B

LV

00241 00301

00220 00360

04300
00620

04151

004610023100215
00511

00465
00517

00601

04000

00421
00451

00530

00459

00200

00500

03801

00300

00250

00351
04201

0052103901

00135

00401

00415

00100

00350

/
PD07-18R4

_̂

i - 1Prepared: 11-3-2016

REVISION TO DEVELOPMENT PLAN
19.425 ACRES

KC

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 340170

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD07-18R4 

North of East Interstate 20 Highway and east of Matlock Road  

 
 

            

View of site looking east towards the Center 

Street Bridge. 

 

 

View west along service road. 

 

 

View west along Highlander Boulevard. 

 

 

View of existing type B sign along Highlander 

Boulevard. 

 















 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD11-7R2 (QT 876) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date: 11-9-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD11-7R2, with a revised Development 
Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On November 9, 2011, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
PD11-7 for a gasoline sales station, a car wash, and a lot to be developed at a later date by 
a vote of 9-0-0. 
 
On December 6, 2011, City Council approved first reading of PD11-7 by a vote of 6-0-1.  
 
On December 13, 2011, City Council approved PD11-7 by a vote of 7-0-1.   
 
On December 5, 2012, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a replat for four lots 
in the current configuration. 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests a revision to the approved development plan for an additional 28 
parking spaces for the existing QuikTrip location, on approximately 2.59 acres addressed at 
1425 North Cooper Street and 600 West Road to Six Flags Street, and generally located 
south of West Road to Six Flags Street and east of North Cooper Street.  
 
Request:  Application for approval of a revision to the development plan on 

approximately 2.590 acres currently zoned Planned Development (PD) 
for Community Service (CS) uses, with exclusions, with a Development 
Plan 

 
Existing Site Conditions 
The site originally contained a number of commercial buildings adjacent to North Cooper 
Street, as well as a small multi-family development that fronted on West Road to Six Flags 
Street.  After the zoning change was approved in 2011 and the replat approved in 2012, 
development began of the existing QuikTrip convenience store located at 1425 North Cooper 
Street.  The lot to the east, 600 West Road to Six Flags Street, was never developed and is 
the primary focus of this revision.     
 
There is a plat application currently under review for an amended plat that will combine 
what will further be referred to as Tract 1 and Tract 3, also known as Lots 1R and 2R, Block 
A of the QT 876 Addition. 
     
Adjacent Land Uses 
The property to the south of the subject site is part of the existing PD zoned Community 
Service (CS) and developed with the car wash development. Further to the east and south 
are properties zoned for residential uses developed with a religious institution and single 
family residences. The properties to the north of the subject site are zoned Entertainment 
District Overlay – Community Commercial (EDO-CC), and one is developed with a 
convenience store while the other remains undeveloped. The properties to the west of the 



Page 2 of 4 

 

subject site are zoned Neighborhood Commercial (NC) and Office Commercial (OC) and 
developed with commercial establishments.    
 
Development Plan 
The revised development plan is proposing to add an additional 28 parking spaces to the 
east side of the existing QuikTrip.  The applicant feels that the current parking on site is not 
adequate enough to serve the existing QuikTrip facility, and is seeking additional parking 
spaces on what was previously known as Tract 3 of the development.  Provided below are 
transaction reports from 6:00 am to 3:00 pm, weekdays, 6/24/2016 through 7/12/2016: 
 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

Daily 
Average 

1,951 1,948 2,024 2,023 2,232 

Hourly 
Average 

216 216 224 225 248 

 
The sidewalk existing between Tracts 3 and 1 is being removed with this revision, as the 
majority of that area would now be parking.  The portion that provided pedestrian 
connectivity to Tract 3 is also being removed, as the tracts are being combined and there is 
an existing pedestrian connection from West Road to Six Flags Street to the existing 
QuikTrip location on Tract 1.  
 
Landscaping and Screening 
Exhibit “B” of the previously approved ordinance (Ordinance No. 11-069) defines the 
conditions for development of Tract 3 as such: 
 

a. The construction of the 20-foot landscape setback, with the required landscaping, 
along West Road to Six Flags Street will occur during the development of Tract 3. 

b. The construction of the eight-foot tall, precast masonry wall along the east property 
line will occur during the development of Tract 3. 

c. The construction of the 30-foot transitional buffer, with the required landscaping, 
along the east property line will occur during the development of Tract 3. 

 
The previous ordinance required a 20-foot landscape setback; however, the 15-foot 
landscape setback that is being proposed in this revision is consistent with what is required 
by the Unified Development Code (UDC) for Major Collector street types.  The proposed 
plantings used in the landscape setback and parking lot screening areas along West Road to 
Six Flags Street are consistent with the landscaping that was previously approved on the 
other three tracts.  A minimum of 41 plants would be required within this landscape 
setback.  The revised plan is exceeding this requirement by proposing 144 Needle Point 
Holly that will function additionally as parking lot screening, as well as 707 square feet of 
Liriope.  
 
The 8-foot tall masonry wall that is located on the southern and eastern edges of Tracts 4 
and 2 will continue down the eastern edge of existing Tract 3.   
 
This revision is proposing to keep the required 30-foot transitional buffer, but suggesting a 
difference in the location and the number of trees within this buffer.  After the previous 
development plan was approved, an additional replat added a 10-foot Oncor electrical 
easement and a 15-foot private sanitary sewer easement within the required buffer.  The 



Page 3 of 4 

 

new proposal would shift the tree line to the west in an attempt to keep roots from growing 
into these easements.  The previous development plan required 14 trees within this buffer, 
while this revised development plan is proposing 17.   
 
The applicant is seeking a deviation in the amount of parking lot islands that are required by 
the UDC.  These requirements state that landscape islands are placed at the terminus of 
each row of parking, and islands cannot be separated by more than ten parking spaces.  The 
applicant is providing the islands at the terminus of the additional row of parking, but these 
islands are separated by 14 parking spaces.  In lieu of the required internal island, the 
applicant is proposing to add an additional tree to one of the islands. 
 

Tree Requirements 

 Required Proposed 

Landscape Setback Four, 3-inch caliper trees Four, 4-inch caliper trees 

Transitional Buffer 14, 3-inch caliper trees 
(Ordinance No. 11-069) 

17, 4-inch caliper trees – 
14 trees required by 

Ordinance No. 11-069 
Three, 4-inch caliper trees 

as part of over parking 
requirements 

Parking Lot Islands Two, 3-inch caliper trees Four, 4-inch caliper trees 

 
Parking 
The existing QuikTrip location is currently serviced by 46 parking spaces, as well as 10 
gasoline sales spaces that are covered by an existing canopy.  The additional 28 spaces 
being proposed will increase the total parking on site to 74 parking spaces.  The applicant is 
proposing to use the required 14 transitional buffer trees from the previously approved 
development plan (which are not yet installed), three additional 4-inch caliper trees also in 
this buffer, and one additional 4-inch caliper tree in a required parking island to meet the 
requirements for over parking the site.   
 
Deviations  
The revised Development Plan is seeking deviations from the following UDC requirements: 

- Section 5.2.2.E.2 Internal Parking Area Landscaping  
o Landscape islands shall not be separated by more than 10 parking spaces.  

For purposes of determining tree spacing, parking spaces may be counted in 
any rational sequence. 

 Proposal – to plant one additional tree in one of the required landscape 
island 

 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The proposed change to the PD to increase the property size and provide additional parking 
for customers represents a minor change that is still in keeping with the community and 
neighborhood convenience commercial uses that are envisioned as one use for Regional 
Activity Centers and for Established Residential areas in the Comprehensive Plan (2015), 99 
Square Miles. The goals for these areas include providing commercial services for residents 
and visitors to Arlington. Considering the goals for this area, the proposed change to the PD 
for increased parking is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and other relevant 
plans. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (9 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE December 6, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Bryan Isham 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6654 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case: PD11-7R2  i-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

Applicant: QuikTrip Corporation, represented by John Pimentel 

 

Property Owner:  QuikTrip Corporation, represented by John Pimentel and  

 Y&C 876 LTD, represented by Jesse Yen 

  

Sector Plan:  Central 

 

Council District:  1 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 
Development History: The subject site is currently platted and commonly known as 

Lots 1R and 2R, Block A of the QT 876 Addition.  An application 
to combine the two existing lots into Lot 1R1, Block A of the QT 
876 Addition has been submitted and is currently under review. 

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

PD11-7 Subject Site PD-CS with 

exclusions, with a 

Development Plan 

Approved 

PD11-7R1 Subject Site Administrative 

Change to approved 

Development Plan 

Approved 

 

Transportation: The existing development has one point of access from North 

Cooper Street and one point of access from West Road to Six 

Flags Street. 

  

Thoroughfare Existing Per TDP 

West Road to Six 

Flags 

80-foot ROW          

4-lane undivided  

major collector 

70-foot ROW 

4-lane undivided 

major collector 

North Cooper 

Street 

120-foot ROW 

6-lane divided 

major arterial 

120-foot ROW 

6-lane divided 

major arterial 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed PD amendment will generate similar traffic 

patterns as the existing PD and will not impact the adjacent 

street system. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Existing site with water and sewer service. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the Johnson Creek drainage basin. The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain. No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD11-7R2  i-2 

Prepared:   9-16-16     BRYAN ISHAM 
 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 4, located at 1733 West Randol Mill Road, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District 

 

 The proposed request is located in the Arlington Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

   Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owner’s Association 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Double Y Wooded Estate Addition 

Friends of Parkway Central Park 

Old Town Neighborhood Association 

Parkway Central Home Owner’s Association 

Town North Neighbors  

  Property Owners:  19 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD11-7R2   ii-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

 

Allowable Uses: Community Commercial (CC) 

 

Permitted – Nursing home, Art gallery or museum, 

Government administration and civic buildings, Philanthropic 

institution (other than listed), Religious assembly, Business 

school, Public or private school, Hospital, Medical or dental 

office or clinic, Cemetery, Community garden, Public park or 

playground, Gasoline sales, Catering service, Restaurant, 

Restaurant/take-out and delivery only, Office/business or 

professional, Telemarketing call center, Day care center, Private 

club/lodge/fraternal, General personal services (other than 

listed), Massage therapy clinic, Wedding chapel, Country club, 

Golf course, Major tourist attraction, General retail store (other 

than listed), Pawn shop, Second-hand goods store, Swimming 

pool/spa and accessory sales and service, Medical or scientific 

research laboratory, Electric utility substation.  

 

Specific Use Permit – Halfway House, Hospital/psychiatric, 

Alternative Financial Institution, Hotel/limited service, Banquet 

hall, Billiard parlor, Bingo hall, Recreation general outdoor 

(other than listed), Gas well, Utility installation other than 

listed, Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth 

towers >100 ft., Self-storage facility.  

 

Conditions – Kennel/commercial, Veterinary clinic, Motor 

vehicle rental, Financial services, Restaurant with drive-

through, Sidewalk café, Hotel/full service, Nursery/garden shop 

or plant sales, Custom and craft work, Telecommunication 

Facilities Building-mounted antennae and towers, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers 

≤100 ft., Wholesale Supply Business. 

 

Excluded Uses:  Domestic violence shelter, Mortuary/crematory/funeral chapel, 

University/college/seminary, Crop production, Recreation/ 

indoor (other than listed), Firearm sales, Radio or TV station or 

studio, Utility lines, towers or metering station, Halfway House, 

Residence hotel, Bail bond service, Tattoo parlor, Bowling alley, 

Gun range, Night club, Marina, Specialty paraphernalia sales, 

Wrecker service, Transit passenger terminal, Skating rink, Teen 

club, Theatre indoor, Building and landscaping materials and 

lumber sales, Food processing. 
 



SUP96-31 SUP97-7

SUP07-9R2

EDO-CC

RMF-22

R MF -22

EDO-CC
CC

RS-7.2

RS-7.2
RMF-22

PD

RM-12

EDO-LI EDO-LI
EDO-GC

RMF-22

RS-7.2

OC

PD
NC

RMF-22

PD

RS-7.2

RS-7.2CC

B96-03

PD11-7

E LAMAR BLV

GI
BB

IN
S R

D

W ROAD TO S IX FLAGS ST

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 C

T

GEMINI CT

GIBBINS CT

W I30 WB 27A EXIT RMP
W INTERSTATE 30 FWY

W LA MAR BLV

VA
NC

OU
VE

R 
DR

BI
RM

IN
GH

AM
 D

R

E INTERSTATE 30 HWY
E I30 EB 27 EXIT RMP

E I30 WB FRONTAGE

00503

00502

00408

00753

00414

01409

01415

01406

01303

00410

01221
00412

00416

01309

00505

00504

00409
01301

01503

01410
0134201344

00515

00506

01514

01504

01328
01332

00900

0050900603

01420

00763

00608

01515

01411

01502

00702

01340

00801

00901

01400

01510

01405

00700

00751

00518

00519

01200

0070400708

01334
01338

01520

00701

01326
01330

00507

01118

01508

01403

00512

00605

01507
01509

00710

01404

01346
01348

00508

01402

01305

01217

01407

01511

01506

00706

01322

01336

01530

01304
00607

01218

01219

00601

0150001505

01529

01606

01501

00616

00615

00610

00611

00500

00620

0060900619

01315

00815
0060200604

00612

01408

00411

01612

00820

00600

00413

00401

00415

01401

00501

01319

01425

01521

/

LOCATION MAP
PD11-7R2

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 10-7-2016

REVISION TO DEVELOPMENT PLAN
2.590 ACRES

BI

This product is for inform ational purpose s and ma y not have  be en pre pared for or be
suitable for le ga l, enginee ring, or surve ying purposes . It does  not repres ent an

on- the-ground s urvey  a nd re pre sent s only  the  approx ima te relative  loc ation of  property  boundaries . 
0 220110

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD11-7R2 

South of West Road to Six Flags Road and east of North Cooper Street  

  

View of adjacent commercial use across West 

Road to Six Flags Road.  View north. 

View of existing development on subject site.  

View west. 

  

View of adjacent commercial use as seen from 

the subject site.  View south. 

View of adjacent commercial use across North 

Cooper Street.  View east. 

  

 



NORTH COOPER STREET
(VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W.)

TOP OF MANHOLE      =618.71'
FL 6" IN FROM WEST  =608.50'
FL 8" IN FROM SOUTH =608.50'
FL 8" OUT TO NORTH  =608.31'

TOP OF MANHOLE      =618.24'
FL 8" IN FROM SOUTH =609.14'
FL 8" OUT TO NORTH  =608.89'

TOP OF INLET =619.61
FL 4" PVC IN FROM WEST =618.29'

FL 24" RCP OUT TO NORTH =616.33'

W
E

S
T 

R
O

A
D

 T
O

 S
IX

 F
LA

G
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
(V

A
R

IA
B

LE
 W

ID
TH

 R
.O

.W
.)

SITE PLAN

30 15 0 30 60

N

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

08
76

14
25

 N
or

th
 C

oo
pe

r 
St

re
et

Ar
lin

gt
on

, T
X

QT16007_0876

P-88 (08/01/16)

08

001

ALP

ALP

MTM

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

4821 Merlot Avenue, Suite 210
Grapevine, Texas 76051
Phone: 817-488-4960
Texas Firm No: 15874

SITE LEGEND (NEW)

Vicinity MapVicinity Map

DEE

B
A

TE
S

HELENBRYAN

HALLMARK

D
IA

N
A

THANNISCH

C
R

A
V

E
N

RYAN PLAZA

GARFIELD

C
O

O
P

E
R

ROAD TO SIX  FLAGS

A
LT

M
A

N

ALTMAN

NICHOLS

V
A

N
C

O
V

E
R

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

GIBBINS

G
IB

B
IN

S

GEMINI
ROYAL FIELD

H
A

D
LE

Y

SITE

RANDOL

SITE DATA (QUIKTRIP STORE)

SITE LEGEND (EXISTING)

PD
11

-7
R2



NORTH COOPER STREET
(VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W.)

TOP OF MANHOLE      =618.71'
FL 6" IN FROM WEST  =608.50'
FL 8" IN FROM SOUTH =608.50'
FL 8" OUT TO NORTH  =608.31'

TOP OF MANHOLE      =618.24'
FL 8" IN FROM SOUTH =609.14'
FL 8" OUT TO NORTH  =608.89'

W
E

S
T 

R
O

A
D

 T
O

 S
IX

 F
LA

G
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
(V

A
R

IA
B

LE
 W

ID
TH

 R
.O

.W
.)

LANDSCAPE PLAN

30 15 0 30 60

N

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

08
76

14
25

 N
or

th
 C

oo
pe

r 
St

re
et

Ar
lin

gt
on

, T
X

QT16007_0876

P-88 (08/01/16)

08

001

ALP

ALP

MTM

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

4821 Merlot Avenue, Suite 210
Grapevine, Texas 76051
Phone: 817-488-4960
Texas Firm No: 15874

Existing Landscape Schedule

Proposed Landscape Schedule

PD
11

-7
R2



PD11-7
v-vii

PD11-7
v-7



NORTH COOPER STREET
(110' R.O.W.)

R
O

A
D

 T
O

 S
IX

 F
LA

G
S

(V
A

R
IA

B
LE

 W
ID

TH
' R

.O
.W

.)

G
IBBIN

S  C
O

U
R

T

(50' R
.O

.W
.)

NORTH COOPER STREET

(110' R.O.W.)

S
 8

9°
01

'2
2"

 E
   

19
2.

21
'

N 00°32'00" E   217.73'

S 00°32'00" W   280.03'

876
5,720

22'-0"

D=90°26'37"
R=80.00'

L=126.28'
CL=52.53'

N 45°45'19" E

N
 8

9°
28

'0
0"

 W
   

27
2.

83
'

TRACT 2
56,387 SF

1.2945
ACRES

TRACT 3
38,798 SF

0.8907
ACRES

 TRACT 4
48,050 SF

1.1031
ACRES

TRACT 1
81,077 SF

1.8613
ACRES

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

08
76

CO
O

PE
R 

ST
. &

 R
O

AD
 T

O
 S

IX
 F

LA
G

S
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
, T

X

11-663.876

7/
29

/1
1

P-68 (08/01/11)

DALLAS

001

CMA

KKE

WAR

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

SITE PLAN

40 20 0 40 80

N

DEE

B
A

TE
S

HELENBRYAN

HALLMARK

D
IA

N
A

ANDREWS

P
A

R
K

MURRY

R
O

O
S

E
V

E
LT

THANNISCH

C
R

A
V

E
N

N
E

W
 H

A
V

E
N

RYAN PLAZA

GARFIELD

C
O

O
P

E
R

COPELAND

ROAD TO SIX  FLAGS

A
LT

M
A

N

ALTMAN

NICHOLS

V
A

N
C

O
V

E
R

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

GIBBINS

G
IB

B
IN

S

GEMINI
ROYAL FIELD

H
A

D
LE

Y

157

3030

SITE

LOCATION MAP
SCALE: 1"=2000'

RANDOL

G
IB

PD11-7

PD11-7
v-i

PD11-7
v-1



NORTH COOPER STREET
(110' R.O.W.)

R
O

A
D

 T
O

 S
IX

 F
LA

G
S

(V
A

R
IA

B
LE

 W
ID

TH
' R

.O
.W

.)

G
IBBIN

S  C
O

U
R

T

(50' R
.O

.W
.)

NORTH COOPER STREET

(110' R.O.W.)

TRACT 2
56,387 SF

1.2945
ACRES

TRACT 3
38,798 SF

0.8907
ACRES

S
 8

9°
01

'2
2"

 E
   

19
2.

21
'

N 00°32'00" E   217.73'

S 00°32'00" W   280.03'

D=90°26'37"
R=80.00'

L=126.28'
CL=52.53'

=N 45°45'19" E

N
 8

9°
28

'0
0"

 W
   

27
2.

83
'

TRACT 1
81,077 SF

1.8613
ACRES

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

08
76

CO
O

PE
R 

ST
. &

 R
O

AD
 T

O
 S

IX
 F

LA
G

S
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
, T

X

11-663.876

7/
29

/1
1

P-68 (08/01/11)

DALLAS

001

CMA

KKE

WAR

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

OVERALL LANDSCAPE
PLAN

40 20 0 40 80

N

DEE

B
A

TE
S

HELENBRYAN

HALLMARK

D
IA

N
A

ANDREWS

P
A

R
K

MURRY

R
O

O
S

E
V

E
LT

THANNISCH

C
R

A
V

E
N

N
E

W
 H

A
V

E
N

RYAN PLAZA

GARFIELD

C
O

O
P

E
R

COPELAND

ROAD TO SIX  FLAGS

A
LT

M
A

N

ALTMAN

NICHOLS

V
A

N
C

O
V

E
R

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

GIBBINS

G
IB

B
IN

S

GEMINI
ROYAL FIELD

H
A

D
LE

Y

157

3030

SITE

LOCATION MAP
SCALE: 1"=2000'

RANDOL

P
H

O
N

E
 (9

72
) 3

35
-0

88
9

FR
IS

C
O

, T
E

XA
S

 7
50

35
11

91
4 

W
IS

H
IN

G
 W

E
LL

 C
T.

PD11-7

PD11-7
v-ii

PD11-7
v-�



OVERALL LANDSCAPE
PLAN

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

08
76

CO
O

PE
R 

ST
. &

 R
O

AD
 T

O
 S

IX
 F

LA
G

S
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
, T

X

11-663.876

7/
29

/1
1

P-68 (08/01/11)

DALLAS

001

CMA

KKE

WAR

A

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

DIVISION:

DESIGNED BY:

1

©  COPYRIGHT QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 2011
ANY UNAUTHORIZED USE, REPRODUCTION,
PUBLICATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR SALE IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 I

SS
U

E 
D

AT
E:

PROTOTYPE:

VERSION:

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

RE
V

D
AT

E
D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

40 20 0 40 80

N

P
H

O
N

E
 (9

72
) 3

35
-0

88
9

FR
IS

C
O

, T
E

XA
S

 7
50

35
11

91
4 

W
IS

H
IN

G
 W

E
LL

 C
T.

PD11-7
v-iii

PD11-7
v-�



PD11-7
v-iv

PD11-7
v-�



PD11-7
v-v

PD11-7
v-�



PD11-7
v-vi

PD11-7
v-�



 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-11 (Kroger SW 593) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  11-9-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-11, with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On August 18, 2004, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
Zoning Case Z04-41 by a vote of 4-3-1. 
 
On September 21, 2004, City Council approved Zoning Case Z04-41 by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 33.607 acres at 2420 East 
Sublett Road, and generally located south of East Sublett Road and west of South Highway 
360.  
 
Current zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for Community Commercial (CC) uses, with 

a Concept Brief 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for limited Community Commercial (CC) 

uses plus a Package Liquor store, with a Development Plan 
 
The site is zoned to allow for commercial development at this location.  However, the 
development requires a new development plan with construction not following the approval 
of the original PD within a five-year timeframe.  Additionally, the applicant is requesting to 
add Package Liquor Store use and exclude a few others. 
 
On the same agenda, a preliminary plat and an Alternate Sign Plan for subject site are 
requested. 
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject site is separated into two sections by a 150-foot wide Oncor transmission 
corridor running diagonally across the northern portion of the site.  The small triangular area 
to the northwest contains a residence, and one larger area to the south contains an 
accessory building but is largely undeveloped. The site is zoned PD for CC, with the excluded 
uses having been updated with this request.  Additionally, Package Liquor Store use, which 
is currently only allowed in General Commercial (GC), Light Industrial (LI), or Industrial 
Manufacturing (IM) zoning districts, is being requested. 
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
The properties to the west are zoned Residential Single Family with a minimum lot area of 
7,200 square feet (RS-7.2) and are developed as single family residences. The property to 
the south is zoned general commercial (GC) and is undeveloped. To the southwest of the 
property, across Southeast Parkway, is the Tarrant County College Southeast Campus. The 
property to the north is zoned community commercial (CC) and contains a gas station use. 
Properties to the northwest are zoned Residential Single Family with a minimum lot area of 
5,000 square feet (RS-5) and are developed as single family residences. Directly east of the 
site is Frontage Road and easement for planned SH-360 southern expansion.  
 
Development Plan 

 Building Design 
The development plan proposes two anchor tenants with seven outparcels on the South 
Highway 360 frontage and one outparcel adjacent to East Sublett Road.  The outparcel 



Page 2 of 5 

 
adjacent to East Sublett Road is separated from the bulk of the development by the existing 
150-foot easement.  Kroger will be located in northern anchor tenant location and proposes 
to operate a fuel center on a separate outparcel along the frontage road.   
 
Kroger 
The structure is proposed to be 124,421-square-foot with brick and split face concrete 
masonry units as the primary building materials.  The primary building entrances are 
enhanced with metal canopies projecting from the main façade.  The eastern elevation of 
the building, which is highly visible from the highway, proposes multiple projections both 
vertical and horizontal exceeding the minimum requirements for articulation required in the 
Unified Development Code.  The south and west elevations, which are not street facing, are 
two toned with brick and split faced CMU façade for the length of the building.  Grocery cart 
storage is located inside the building and adjacent to the primary entrances.  
 
The applicant is requesting a portion of their façade to include cementitious fiberboard as an 
accent material.  Cementitious fiberboard is an approved material for residential 
construction; however, it is listed as a prohibited material for commercial use. 
 
All other buildings 
The applicant proposes a unified development with similar colors and exterior building 
materials throughout the development.  These materials will be brick and split face CMU as 
primary material with cementitious fiberboard as accent.  The buildings must comply with 
the UDC requirements for all outside display and storage limiting the display and storage to 
five-percent of the lot containing the main use. 
 

 Landscaping 
A 150-foot electrical easement is located diagonally along the northern portion of this 
property.  While the maintenance of this area has been granted to the applicant for mowing, 
no additional landscaping other than turf grass is permitted in this easement per the 
agreement with the easement holder.  Additional landscaping has been added to the south 
side of this easement adjacent to the developed area for additional screening of the loading 
dock, parking, and pharmacy drive-thru.  This landscaping consists of a total of 31 four-inch 
caliper oak and cedar elm trees. 

 
 REQUIRED PROPOSED 

WIDTH OF LANDSCAPE SETBACK: 

Along South Highway 360 20 feet complied 

Along East Sublett Road 15 feet complied 

Along Southeast Parkway 15 feet complied 

PLANTINGS WITHIN LANDSCAPE SETBACK: 

 
Along South Highway 360 

Trees: Six 4-inch caliper Six 4-inch caliper Shumard 
Oaks 

Shrubs: 16 per 50 linear 
foot of frontage (76 shrubs 

required) 

 
80 shrubs plus berm 

 

 
Along East Sublett Road 

Trees: Eight 4-inch caliper To be determined with future 
site development 

Shrubs: 14 per 50 linear 
foot of frontage (90 shrubs 

required) 

To be determined with future 
site development 

 
 

Along Southeast Parkway 

 
Trees: 13 4-inch caliper 

15 4-inch caliper Shumard 
Oaks and four 4-inch 
Southern Live Oaks 

 
Shrubs: 14 per 50 linear 

foot of frontage (160 
shrubs required) 

 
18”-24” berm and 237 

shrubs located at the parking 
area 



Page 3 of 5 

 
INTERNAL PARKING LOT TREES: 

 One 3-inch caliper tree per 
10 parking spaces 

29 parking lot islands 
required 

60 parking lot islands 
provided, 95 four-inch 

caliper parking lot trees 
proposed. 

 
Over parking 

One tree is required for 
each three parking spaces 
in excess of the required 

number 

152 parking spaces in excess 
of the required 415 parking 
spaces.  A total of 51 trees 

are proposed for over 
parking. 

 
The applicant proposes four-inch caliper trees for all trees on site including the islands, 
street frontage, parking lot screening, and rear landscape buffer.   
 
• Package Liquor Use 
The applicant has requested Package Liquor store be included in the list of allowable uses 
with this application.  Previous approved requests for this use have provided size, location, 
hours of operation, and tenant for the requested use.  This detailed information has not 
been provided for this location.  Additionally, a Package Liquor store was requested and 
denied with PD15-12 located at 2344 Southeast Green Oaks Boulevard, which was located 
near the subject site within the same sector of the City.  Desired use should require detailed 
information to include size, location, hours of operation, and tenant be brought back at a 
later date for additional review and approval and should not be considered with this request, 
at this time. 
 
Neighborhood Adjacency 
The applicant held neighborhood meetings in May and October to discuss the project and 
ask for input from the community.  Discussed in these meetings was a masonry screening 
wall that would run the length of the development adjacent to the residences to the west.  
During the neighborhood meeting, the residential property owners to the west requested the 
applicant revise the screening to provide a cedar fence the length of the development so 
that most of the existing vegetation (serving as screening) is preserved.  This fence will be 
an eight-foot, board on board, cedar fence.  This fence would allow the retention of the 
existing trees in this area and maintain an existing natural screen.  In addition to the fence, 
the applicant proposes additional four-inch caliper trees planted at 35 feet on center in a 30 
foot landscape buffer running the length of the development.   
 
A trash compactor will be used at the rear of the anchor tenant. Due to the close proximity 
to the adjacent neighborhood this will be beneficial in avoiding excess odor emissions.  The 
lighting fixtures at the rear of the anchor tenants will include cut offs preventing light spill 
over to adjacent properties.   
 
Due to the close proximity to the neighborhood, restrictions will be placed on both anchor 
tenants which prohibit delivers between the hours of 11:00 PM and 5:00 AM.  Signage will 
be placed at the rear of the anchor tenants instructing drivers that no deliveries or truck 
idling are permitted between these hours. 
 
Traffic 
A traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the Sublett Commercial Center was provided with the 
rezoning application. 
 
The scope of the study focused on three scenarios: 

(i)  existing 2015 traffic conditions;  
(ii)  future 2018 background conditions excluding the proposed development 

volumes; and  
(iii)  the total future 2018 conditions including the proposed development volumes.   



Page 4 of 5 

 
The TIA analyzed whether or not there is sufficient capacity on each proposed linkand 
intersection of the adjacent roadways. 
Additionally, it is important to note that the Texas Department of Transportation’s (TxDOT) 
State Highway 360 (SH360) Project will significantly improve South Highway 360 & East 
Sublett Road.  The East Sublett Road improvements will include two additional eastbound 
lanes, and one continuous eastbound right turn lane, which will provide additional capacity 
to East Sublett Road. 
 
The development is proposing to construct three access driveways onto East Sublett Road, 
two driveways onto South State Highway 360 southbound frontage road with deceleration 
lanes, and three driveways onto Southeast Parkway.  One of the driveways on East Sublett 
Road will be located at the existing median opening across from the existing QuikTrip gas 
station driveway at 2451 East Sublett Road.  This development has proposed to construct a 
westbound left turn lane and traffic signal at said median opening.  The two driveways onto 
the SH 360 frontage road are currently under review by TxDOT.  TxDOT has conceptually 
approved a one driveway configuration.   
 
In general, the traffic impact analysis determined that the proposed development will 
increase traffic congestion on the adjacent roadways; however, the TxDOT improvements 
and proposed development improvements will mitigate the proposed development traffic 
with the exception of two locations: 
 

1. The proposed westbound left turn lane at the proposed traffic signal provides 
204 feet of vehicle storage.  The TIA calculates that the peak vehicle storage 
demand will require 259 feet.  This indicates that the proposed line of cars 
waiting to turn left into the development will periodically back up into the thru 
traffic of westbound East Sublett Road.  
 

2. The left turn from Marquette Street onto East Sublett Road currently takes an 
average of 30 seconds per vehicle before a gap in traffic will allow a left turn 
movement.  The TIA for the proposed development calculated an increase in 
wait time of approximately 26 minutes.  The TIA addresses this issue and 
indicates that traffic will move to the signalized intersection on East Sublett 
Road at Prescott Drive and indicates that the 93 cars desiring to turn left at 
Marquette in the peak hour should not adversely impact the level of service at 
the Prescott signal.   
It is important to note that no traffic counts were taken for the Prescott 
intersection and an analysis of the intersection was not performed.  A traffic 
analysis of the intersection may indicate if that the intersection has or does 
not have adequate capacity for the additional trips. 

 
Deviations 
The proposed planned development requested the following deviations from the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  
 

1. A requirement for buildings larger than 20,000 square feet is to have two planting 
areas, a minimum of three feet in width, located between the front facade and the 
sidewalk for a minimum of 20 percent of the length of the façade.  The applicant 
proposes to deviate from the ordinance by not including these planting areas.  In 
place of these plantings, the applicant proposes four Crape Myrtles planted in tree 
wells placed at the building front.   

 
2. The applicant is requesting a portion of their façade to include cementitious fiber 

board as an accent material.  Cementitious fiberboard is an approved material for 
residential construction; however, it is listed as a prohibited material for commercial 
use. 

 



Page 5 of 5 

 
Staff Considerations 
The following items must be taken into consideration for this request. 

- The proposed two driveway configuration is currently under review by TxDOT.  If the 
current two driveway configuration is not accepted by TxDOT, the proposed 
Preliminary Plat and Zoning development plan will be affected. 

- To protect the functionality of traffic on Sublett Road, it may be beneficial to restrict 
left turn movements from Sublett Road into the most northwesterly driveway of the 
proposed development for heavy trucks. 

- Package Liquor is not a compatible use with the requested zoning.  When considering 
this use, information should be provided which indicates site, building design, and 
potential end user for this specific use.  

- While future development of Lot 1, Block B on East Sublett Road will determine 
landscaping at this area, additional trees should be considered along the street 
frontage for additional screening and enhanced visual appeal with the development 
of the site and installation of the site landscaping.  

- Cementitious fiberboard is a prohibited material and should be revised with a 
masonry product suck as brick, stone, or stucco, or an approved material such as 
Alucobond. 

- Staff has requested columns for the Kroger fuel canopy to be exterior to the pumps 
and be clad in the buildings primary material.  Response was received that additional 
columns would not be provided as the proposed design was Kroger’s standard canopy 
design and functioned effectively nationwide.  The applicant stated that shifting the 
columns would result in a redesign and provide little screening due to the narrow 
nature of the columns. 

- Noise, light and odor mitigation measures related to the residential adjacency.  
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
With the exception of the package liquor store uses (which are not allowed in Community 
Commercial zoning districts), this proposed zoning represents the type of commercial 
development that would provide convenient neighborhood services to local residents, as 
envisioned in the 2015 Comprehensive Plan 99 Square Miles for established residential 
areas. Additionally, this zoning change would allow provision of services to travelers along 
the South State Highway 360 corridor. There would be opportunities to connect this site 
with regional pedestrian and bicycle facilities along the planned trail at the north of the site 
and along planned bike lanes on Southeast Parkway at the south of the site. For these 
reasons, the proposed zoning change to PD for CC represents general conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan and other relevant plans 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (6 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 

CITY COUNCIL DATE December 6, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP   Shon Brooks, AICP 
Development Planning Manager   Principal Planner 
Community Development and Planning  Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138     817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov   Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

PD16-11  i-1 

Prepared:   9-24-16     SHON BROOKS 

Applicant: Winkelman and Associates, Inc represented by Michael Clark 

 

Property Owner:  Marc English 

 

Sector Plan:  Southeast 

 

Council District:  3 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently unplatted however; a plat is in for 

review being known as Sublett Kroger Addition Lots 1-9, Block 

A, and Lot 1, Block B.  

 

 There are no previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the 

past five years. 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has three points of access.  

  

Thoroughfare Existing Per TDP 

 

East Sublett Road 

120 foot ROW 

4 lane divided 

major arterial 

120 foot ROW 

4 lane divided 

major arterial 

 

Southeast Parkway 

70 foot ROW 

4 lane undivided 

major collector 

70 foot ROW 

4 lane undivided 

major collector 

South State 

Highway 360 

Variable width 

ROW 

Variable width 

ROW 

 

Traffic Impact: This site will cause significant traffic impact.  See Traffic section 

of Staff Report. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water is available in East Sublett Road to the north, State 

Highway 360 southbound frontage road to the east, and 

Southeast Parkway to the south. Sewer is available at the 

northwest and southwest corners of the property. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the South Fish Creek drainage basin.  The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 16, located at 1503 Mansfield Webb Road, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Mansfield Independent School District 

 



Case Information  
   

 

PD16-11  i-2 

Prepared:   9-24-16     SHON BROOKS 

 The proposed request is located in the Mansfield Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owners Association 

Mansfield Independent School District 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Briarhill Neighborhood Assn 

Fish Creek Neighborhood Association, Inc. 

Fitzgerald Concerned Citizens 

Lake Port Meadows Home Owners Association 

Lake Port Village Community Association, Inc. 

Manhassett Community Watch Group 

Webb Britton Estates 

  Property Owners: 48 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD16-11   ii-1 

Prepared:   9-24-16     SHON BROOKS 

 

Allowable Uses: Planned Development (PD) for limited Community 

Commercial (CC) uses plus a Package Liquor store, with 

a Development Plan 

 

Permitted – Nursing home, Art gallery or museum, 

Government administration and civic buildings, Domestic 

violence shelter, Mortuary/crematory/funeral chapel, 

Philanthropic institution (other than listed), Religious assembly, 

Business school, Public or private school, 

University/college/seminary, Hospital, Medical or dental office 

or clinic, Cemetery, Community garden, Public park or 

playground, Crop production, Gasoline sales, Catering service, 

Restaurant, Restaurant/take-out and delivery only, 

Office/business or professional, Telemarketing call center, Day 

care center, Private club/lodge/fraternal, General personal 

services (other than listed), Massage therapy clinic, Recreation/ 

indoor (other than listed), Wedding chapel, Country club, Major 

tourist attraction, General retail store (other than listed), 

Firearm sales, Second-hand goods store, Swimming pool/spa 

and accessory sales and service, Medical or scientific research 

laboratory, Radio or TV station or studio, Utility lines, towers or 

metering station, and Package liquor store. 

 

Specific Use Permit – Halfway House, Hospital/psychiatric, 

Hotel/limited service, Residence hotel, Bail bond service, 

Billiard parlor, Bowling alley, Gun range, Night club, Recreation 

general outdoor (other than listed), Transit passenger terminal, 

Utility installation other than listed, Telecommunication 

Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth towers >100 ft.  

 

Conditions – Kennel/commercial, Veterinary clinic, Motor 

vehicle rental, Financial services, Restaurant with drive-

through, Sidewalk café, Hotel/full service, Theatre indoor, 

Building and landscaping materials and lumber sales, 

Nursery/garden shop or plant sales, Food processing, Custom 

and craft work, Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted 

antennae and towers, Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 

ft., Stealth towers ≤100 ft., Wholesale Supply Business 



RS-7.2

RS-7.2

GC

PD

RE

PD
RS-5

CC
RS-5

RS-7.2 PD

CC

Z04-41/B04-41

PD07-25

SOUTHEAST PWY

E SUBLETT RD

BRISBANE DR

W CAMP WISDOM RD

HW
Y3

60
SV

C
RD

NB

S WATSON RD

06203

02245

06200

06209

06303

0600706006

0620402243

06004

06208

06403

06304

06315

06407

06003
06002

06201

06215
06300

06309

02248

06001

06308

02244

06207

06000

06310

06008

02326 02328

02329

02331

0591502322

05909

06005

05907
02321

02335

02324

02333

02330 02332

02325
02327

06206

06211

06311

06307

06312

06214

06205

06405

02247

02225

06302

05911
02320

02334

02323

06600

0590002421

02411

06199

02420

02415

06321

06318

02100

06411
06320

02451

06409
06319

06316 06317

06305

06415

/LOCATION MAP
PD16-11

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 8-5-2016

PD for CC uses to PD for CC uses
33.607 ACRES

LVD

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 300150

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-11 

South of East Sublett Road Road and west of South Highway 360  

  

View of subject site.  View southwest View of adjacent fuel station across East Sublett 

Road.  View north. 

  

View of Tarrant County College to the south of 

the subject site.  View southwest. 

View of notification signs along East Sublett 

Road.  View west. 

  

 















 

Staff Report 
 

Alternate Sign Plan ASP16-1 (Kroger DAL593) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  11-9-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Alternate Sign Plan ASP16-1. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On August 18, 2004, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
Zoning Case Z04-41 by a vote of 4-3-1. 
 
On September 21, 2004, City Council approved Zoning Case Z04-41 by a vote of 7-0-0. 
 
REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval of an Alternate Sign Plan (ASP) for approximately 
33.607 acres at 2420 East Sublett Road, and generally located south of East Sublett Road 
and west of South Highway 360.  
 
The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) for Community Commercial (CC) uses, with a 
Concept Brief with a requested zoning of Planned Development (PD) for limited Community 
Commercial (CC) uses plus a Package Liquor store, with a Development Plan.  The subject 
site is proposed to be developed with a Kroger Marketplace and includes a proposal for two 
50-foot tall signs that are approximately 650 square feet in area and one 24-foot tall sign 
that is approximately 200 square feet in area. 
 

Conditions Kroger ASP16-1 

An alternate sign plan applies only to 
property that has 500 feet or more of 
continuous frontage on a freeway or 
arterial street. 

Site is approximately 33.607 acres and has 
over 1,750 linear feet of continuous frontage 
on South State Highway 360. 

 
ANALYSIS 
The subject site is located at the southwest corner of South State Highway 360 (SH 360) 
and East Sublett Road.  The site is currently undeveloped; and has a commercial 
development plan (PD16-11) request for two anchor tenants and eight outparcels on the 
same agenda.   
 
Through the Sign Code Update in July 2015, unified, multi-tenant developments adjacent to 
freeways are provided increased height and area if the development consists of at least 
250,000 square feet of leasable area. The proposed development will most likely meet this 
building square footage criterion, including Kroger, the co-anchor tenant, and the other 
eight lots. Hence, this development shall be eligible for the following increases. Sign 
permits for such signs shall only be approved after a building permit for up to 
150,000 square feet has been approved. 
 

a.  Center Identification may be allowed up to 40 feet in height from grade, with 
no maximum area limitation.  

b.  Tenant signage may be allowed up to 30 feet in height from grade, with a 
maximum area limited to 300 square feet.  

c.  Overall width of the sign shall be no more than 25 feet.  
d.  Such signs must be spaced at least 500 feet apart.  

 
With the construction of SH 360 and in conjunction with the proposed 10-lot commercial 
development at this location, the applicant deems it necessary to exceed this allowable 



Page 2 of 2 

 
height and sign area for maximum visibility. The Alternate Sign Package (see attached) 
outlines the intent, size, general location, and type of illumination for the sign that is 
proposed to be installed.   
 

Sign Location Proposed Signage 

SH 360 50-foot tall/ 16.5-foot wide/ 650 SF sign 

SH 360 50-foot tall/ 16.5-foot wide/ 650 SF sign 

Sign Location 
UDC Standards for multi-tenant 

ground sign Proposed Signage 

West Sublett Road  20-foot tall/ 15-foot wide/ 200 SF  24-foot tall/ 16-foot wide/ 220 SF  

 The applicant is proposing landscaped beds at the base of each sign.  
 The proposed signs will match design and materials to the proposed commercial 

development as requested with PD16-11 

 
The following table compares the proposed sign package with previously approved PD 
and/or Alternative Sign Plans along the Interstate Highway 20 corridor:  
 

Zoning 
case Project 

Site 
acreage Use Request Location 

ASP14-1
 
  

The Parks 
Mall 

90 ac 1,000,000 sf 
retail  

One 50-ft tall (480 sf) I- 20 

PD05-08 
PD12-21 

Arlington 
Highlands 

76 ac 800,000 sf 
retail mix 

Four 47-ft tall (512 sf ea.)  I- 20 

PD13-21 The Highlands 27 ac 283,000 sf 
retail 

 
 

42-ft tall  (585 sf) 
20-ft tall (320 sf) 

 

I- 20 
 

PD12-7 Parks Retail 
Center 

18 ac 217,000 sf 
retail 

40-ft tall (480 sf) 
 
 

I- 20 
 
 

PD05-45 The Highlands 
East 

13 ac 162,000 sf 
retail, Hotel  

50-ft tall (630 sf) 
14-ft tall (90 sf)  
 
 

I- 20 
 
 

PD16-11 Kroger SW 
593 

33 ac 124,400 sf 
Kroger + other 
9 buildings 
 

Two 50-ft tall (650 sf) 
 

SH 360 
 

One 24-ft tall (220 sf) W. Sublett Rd 

 
Alternate Sign Plans are typically administered for unified developments with unique sites or 
signage characteristics.  These sites typically contain many acres and are some of the city’s 
attractions including theme parks and shopping venues.  This application meets the size 
requirement and is a proposed multi-tenant shopping venue.  The site is unique that the 
highway will continue under South SH360 at East Sublett Road and the subject site will be 
higher on the existing access road.  
 
Staff Consideration:  
There is no simulation or rendering provided to indicate that the height and area of the 
signage needs to be increased in order to provide effective signage for the businesses.  It is 
important to understand that this Alternate Sign Plan will set a tone for signage along SH 
360, as the area continues developing, with additional commercial development expected in 
the future.   
 



Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Per Section 10.4.23.G.1, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall base their decision on 
their findings of the extent to which the proposed application: 
 

a. Provides a complete plan for signs that would be clearly superior to what would 
be allowed without the plan; 

 
b. Is justified based on project scale and unified nature of the sign package. Due 

consideration shall be given to a harmonious relationship of signs to buildings 
within the development as well as to buildings adjacent to the development, in 
terms of scale, color, materials, shape and design, and illumination; and 

 
c. Indicates how the signs on the property are integrated into a unified development 

concept with the topography, building design, other signs, landscaping, traffic 
circulation, and other development features of the property and nearby property. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Location Map 
 iii. Photos 
 iv. Alternate Sign Plan (5 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE December 6, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks, AICP 
Development Planning Manager Principal Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case: ASP16-1  i-1 

Prepared:   10-4-16     SHON BROOKS 

Applicant: Winkelman & Assoc., Inc., represented by Maria Bonilla 

 

Property Owner:  Marc English 

 

Sector Plan:  Southeast 

 

Council District:  3 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently unplatted however; a plat is in for 

review being known as Sublett Kroger Addition Lots 1-9, Block 

A, and Lot 1, Block B.  

 

 There are no previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the 

past five years. 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has three points of access.   

 

Thoroughfare Existing Per TDP 

 

East Sublett Road 

120 foot ROW 

4 lane divided 

major arterial 

120 foot ROW 

4 lane divided 

major arterial 

 

Southeast Parkway 

70 foot ROW 

4 lane undivided 

major collector 

70 foot ROW 

4 lane undivided 

major collector 

South State 

Highway 360 

Variable width 

ROW 

Variable width 

ROW 

 

Traffic Impact: This site will cause significant traffic impact.  See Traffic section 

of Staff Report. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water is available in East Sublett Road to the north, State 

Highway 360 southbound frontage road to the east, and 

Southeast Parkway to the south. Sewer is available at the 

northwest and southwest corners of the property. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the South Fish Creek drainage basin.  The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 16, located at 1503 Mansfield Webb Road, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is within five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: ASP16-1  i-2 

Prepared:   10-4-16     SHON BROOKS 

 

School District: Mansfield Independent School District. 

 

 The proposed zoning request is located in the Mansfield 

Independent School District and has no impact on the schools 

serving this site.   

  

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owners Association 

Mansfield Independent School District 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Briarhill Neighborhood Assn 

Fish Creek Neighborhood Association, Inc. 

Fitzgerald Concerned Citizens 

Lake Port Meadows Home Owners Association 

Lake Port Village Community Association, Inc. 

Manhassett Community Watch Group 

Webb Britton Estates 

  Property Owners: 48 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 

 



RS-7.2

RS-7.2

GC

PD

RE

PD
RS-5 CC

RS-5

RS-7.2 PD

CC

Z04-41/B04-41

PD07-25

SOUTHEAST PWY

E SUBLETT RD

BRISBANE DR

W CAMP WISDOM RD

HW
Y

3 6
0 S

VC
RD

NB

S WATSON RD

06203

02245

06200

06209

06303

0600706006

0620402243

06004

06208

06403

06304

06315

06407

06003
06002

06201

06215
06300

06309

02248

06001

06308

02244

06207

06000

06310

06008

02326 02328

02329

02331

0591502322

05909

06005

05907
02321

02335

02324

02333

02330 02332

02325
02327

06206

06211

06311

06307

06312

06214

06205

06405

02247

02225

06302

05911
02320

02334

02323

06600

0590002421

02411

06199

02420

02415

06321

06318

02100

06411
06320

02451

06409
06319

06316 06317

06305

06415

/LOCATION MAP
ASP16-1

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 8-5-2016

ALTERNATE SIGN PLAN
33.607 ACRES

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries. 
0 300150

Feet



  iv-1 
 

ASP16-1 

South of East Sublett Road Road and west of South Highway 360  

  

View of subject site.  View southwest View of adjacent fuel station across East Sublett 

Road.  View north. 

  

View of Tarrant County College to the south of 

the subject site.  View southwest. 

View of notification signs along East Sublett 

Road.  View west. 

  

 



VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

N

S

E
W

LEGEND

EXHIBIT D-1



Exhibit D2

Architectural Concrete Block

Oldcastle - Quik Brik - 4”

Concrete Stone Veneer

Texas Stone Design Inc. - Palo Pinto Cobble

2” retainer, Duranodic Bronze

© 2010 -2015 All ideas, arrangements and plans indicated or represented by this artwork are the sole property of 3 Di Sign + Design, Inc. and were created,evolved and developed for 

the express written consent of 3 Di Sign + Design, Inc.

Client:

Project:

Item Number:

Description:

Windstar 

360 & Sublet Monuments

 

50’ Monument

DATE: 09/12/16
PREPARED BY: CJ

3 Di Sign + Design, Inc.
1133 West Main Street

Arlington, TX 76013

Fax: 817.548.0591

SHOPPING CENTER SIGN 1

OPTION B

SQUARE FOOTAGE OF GRAPHICS
(Not to exceed 75% of sign):

  
  Co-Anchor:  
  Panel size = 96” x 198“
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 92“ x 194”
                             Max 193.14 sf
  KROGER:  
  Panel size = 93” x 198“
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 89“ x 194”
  GRAPHICS area = 80.9“ x 170”
                                    95.51 sf 
  Fuel:
  46” x 198” = 63.25 sf 

  Full length tenants:
  Panel size = 41.5” x 198”
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 37.5t“ x 194”
                             Max 50.52 sf  (x2) 

  Divided tenants:
  Panel size = 30” x 99”
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 27” x 96”t  
                             Max 18 sf  (x4)

72”



Exhibit D3

Architectural Concrete Block

Oldcastle - Quik Brik - 4”

Concrete Stone Veneer

Texas Stone Design Inc. - Palo Pinto Cobble

2” retainer, Duranodic Bronze

© 2010 -2015 All ideas, arrangements and plans indicated or represented by this artwork are the sole property of 3 Di Sign + Design, Inc. and were created,evolved and developed for 

the express written consent of 3 Di Sign + Design, Inc.

Client:

Project:

Item Number:

Description:

Windstar 

360 & Sublet Monuments

 

50’ Monument

DATE: 09/12/16
PREPARED BY: CJ

3 Di Sign + Design, Inc.
1133 West Main Street

Arlington, TX 76013

Fax: 817.548.0591

SHOPPING CENTER SIGN 2

OPTION B

SQUARE FOOTAGE OF GRAPHICS
(Not to exceed 75% of sign):

  
  
  KROGER:  
  Panel size = 93” x 198“
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 89“ x 194”
  GRAPHICS area = 80.9“ x 170”
                                    95.51 sf 
  Fuel:
  46” x 198” = 63.25 sf 
  
  Co-Anchor:  
  Panel size = 96” x 198“
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 92“ x 194”
                             Max 193.14 sf

  Full length tenants:
  Panel size = 41.5” x 198”
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 37.5t“ x 194”
                             Max 50.52 sf  (x2) 

  Divided tenants:
  Panel size = 30” x 99”
  w/ 2” Retainer 
  Visible area = 27” x 96”t  
                             Max 18 sf  (x4)

72”



Exhibit D4

 
SQUARE FOOTAGE OF GRAPHICS
(Not to exceed 75% of sign):

  KROGER:  
  Panel size = 66” x 132”
  Visible Area =  62” x 128”
  GRAPHICS Area = 54 x 113.5“
                                      42.57 sf

  Fuel:
  46” x 132” = 42.17 sf 

  Co-Anchor:  
  Panel size = 60“ x 132”
  Visible area = 56“ x 128”
                              Max 49.78 sf

  Divided Tenants:
  Panel size = 17” x 66
  Visible area = 14” x 63”
                              Max  6.125 sf (x4)

© 2010 -2015 All ideas, arrangements and plans indicated or represented by this artwork are the sole property of 3 Di Sign + Design, Inc. and were created,evolved and developed for 

the express written consent of 3 Di Sign + Design, Inc.

Client:

Project:

Item Number:

Description:

Windstar

24’

(288”)

66”

46”

60”

17”
34”

17”

18”

52”

 

360 & Sublet Monuments

 

24’ Monument

DATE: 07/20/16
PREPARED BY: CJ

3 Di Sign + Design, Inc.
1133 West Main Street

Arlington, TX 76013

Fax: 817.548.0591

18”

204”

SHOPPING CENTER SIGN 3

62”

4”

4”

2”

4”

4”

4”

4”

7.25”

3”

5”

10”

168”

180”

192”

132”

156”

12”

72”

7.25”

Architectural Concrete Block

Oldcastle - Quik Brik - 4”

Concrete Stone Veneer

Texas Stone Design Inc. - Palo Pinto Cobble

2” retainer, Duranodic bronze




	Case Location Map
	Work Session Agenda
	Regular Session Agenda
	Draft - 2017 Planning & Zoning Public Hearing Schedule
	Bus Tour Agenda

	Regular Session Agenda Items
	Preliminary Plat - Kroger Sublett SR with attach for 11-09-16 P&Z.pdf 
	Staff Report
	Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	PD16-18 SR with attach for 11-09-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	PD07-18R4 SR with attach for 11-9-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Sign Plan

	PD11-7R2 SR with attach for 11-09-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	PD16-11 SR with attach for 11-09-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	ASP16-1 SR with attach for 11-09-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Location Map
	Photos
	Alternate Sign Plan





